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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENT

In this annual report, we have disclosed forward-looking information to enable investors to comprehend our
prospects and take informed investment decisions. This report and other statements —written and oral —that we
periodically make, may contain forward-looking statements that set out anticipated resuvlts based on the
management's plans and assumptions. We have tried wherever possible to identify such statements by using
words such as 'anticipates’, 'estimates, 'expects’, 'projects’, 'intends’, ‘plans’, 'believes' and words of similar
substance in connection with any discussion of future performance.

We cannot guarantee that these forward-looking statements will be realised, although we believe we have been
prudent in our assumptions. The achievement of results is subject to risks, uncertainties and even inaccurate
assumptions. Should known or unknown risks or uncertainties materialise, or should underlying assumptions
prove inaccurate, actual results could vary materially from those anticipated, estimated or projected. We
undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new
information, future eventsorotherwise.
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ABOUT US

nic industries Lid. is one of the ofdest manufaciurer
of cigareties in Indis. On Sepfember 1931 the
company was Incorporated as Naffonal Tobacco
Company of india Lid. In 1994 RDB indusiries Lid.
purchased the sssef and gooodwill of the company
and laiter bocome lo be known as nic Industries
Limifed.

nic is one of the few companies in India having
feense o mamsfaciure cigarettes.

The company has @ solid foundalion with visionary
Leadsrship from the Board of Members who are
supporied by experienced end dedicaled
professionals, the besf ialeniz in their respaciive
flelds, who have helped fo achleve oplimum
efficlency In cigareiies manufacturing, marketing &

e /s prominent among cigareifes manufacturer in
india with a wide range of brands. nic hae a
presence in alf segment of marksl. nic's popular
portiolfo of brands Include Regemi, Cool, No.10,
Maypole, Jaipuy, General. mie Is the market feaderof
rofFyour-own-obacco’ (Prince Henry) in lndia. The
company pioneered the infroduction of 84 mm King
Size Marcigaretios, mentholaied cigareiies in india.

ntc has 8 modem PMD for tobacco processing of
any blend type-Virginia or Amerfcan, We can make
and develop finast blands fo suit custornar choice.

nic's SMD for making & packing ls well equipped
with full range of modem machinerias o produce
quaifly cigarettes as wsal as exceflent finlshed
pacieis in conformation fo intemational Siandards.

nic exporte cigarafies fo South America, African
Caountries amd Middis East Courniries.

ntc also underiakes comract for mamulecture and

defiver products blended and packaged fo very
oxact specilcation of the customers.

nic has won recognilion for excellance in quaiity at
various forums Including the World Tobacco
Products Conlest In Brussefs, Rofterdam,

Amsterdam, Parfs end Liscembiurg.

nic, in the past, produced brands ke Rothmans
King Size, Oxford King, undsr license from
Ruothmans of Palf Mal.,

nic had an agrasmertd in past with Samporna Asia
ple. of Indonesia o import and distribide Exclirshive’
brand of clove cigarsites in india.

The company Is working with aingle minded focus
on continuous value creatfon for customer, through
R&D in crealing guelity blends, maintaiming
conglistent quality with state of the ari
manifaciuring lechnology. ntc has consistently
Cuaifty Rating System.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors have pleasures in presenting the 25th Annual Report together with the Audited Statements of
Accounts for the financial year ended 315t March 2016,

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
The financial results of the Company during the year are given below:
¥ in Lacs)
Particulars Standalone Consolldated
Financial Financial Financial Financial
Year Year Year Year
20152016 20142015 20152016 20142015
1.8} Income from oparations BB8.53 230295 1831.B5 2510.82
b) Other Income a20.52 190.88 327 191.1a
2. Expangas 177.ES 225212 1476.98 225610
Profiti{Loss) before interest and
depreciation 31.40 241.1 863.18 446.01
Less: a) Fmance Cosl 3815 G024 427 .84 52.10
b} Depreciation 50,03 B84.30 180.96 110.80
Profit/ (Loss) before Exceptional ltems (56.78) 9717 254,38 243.01
Add: Exceplional [lems 2 . - =
Profit/ (Loss) before taxation (56.78) er.AaT 254.38 243.01
Less:- Provisions for curment tax,
defermed tax and {ax adjesimeants for (7.04) {25.60) B1.98 1040
earlier years
Profit’ (Loss) After Tax (49.74) 122.77 172,42 232.61
En:: Balance brought fonward from [asl 1692.12 1569.35 1801.95 1669.34
Less: Amount transferred to Reserves - - - -
Balance camried to the Balance Sheet 1642.38 1682.12 1974.37 1801.85
DIVIDEND

Due to loss incurred during the financial year 2015-16, your directors regret their inability to recommend any
dividend,

RESERVES
The Company has not proposed any transfer to its Resarves.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
The fiscal year 2015-16 was another tough year for the cigarette industry coupled with various factors affecting
sales volume of cigarettes manufacturers in India. Your Company was also influenced by these various factors.

During the year under review, your company has incurred loss of Rs. 56.78 Lacs as compared to PBT of
Rs. 87.17 Lacs in the previous year. Your Company's total turmover from cigarettes business has also decreased
to Rs. 1781.76 Lacs as comparad lo Rs. 2607.85 Lacs in the previous year, Export sales also decreased 1o
Rs. 517.57 Lacs from Rs. 1548.55 Lacs. However, domestic sales increased to Rs. 1267.19 Lacs from
Rs. 1058.29 Lacs in the previous year. The Consolidated PBT also increased to Rs. 254.38 from Rs. 243.01
Lacs inthe previous year.
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Change in nature of business, ifany

During the year, there was no change in the nature of business of the Company.
Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Companies

As on 31st March, 2016, your company has 4 wholly owned subsidiarias,

In accordance with Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has prepared a Consolidated
Financial Statement of the Company and all of its subsidiary, which is forming part of the Annual Reporl.

Tha Annual accounts of the subsidiary will be kept at the Registered Office of the Company and also at the
Registered Cffice of the subsidiary companies and will be available to the investors seeking information at any
time during the working hours of the Company except Saturday. Further as per section 136 of the Companies
Act, 2013, the audited financial statements, including the consolidated financial statements and related
information of the Company and audited accounts of each of the subsidiaries are available al our website at
www.ntcind.com. The Company does not have any Joint Venture or Associate company.

Pursuant to proviso to Section 129(3) of the Act, a statement containing salient features of the financial
statements of the Company's subsidiaries in Form AQC-1 is attached to the consolidated financial statements
of the Company.

The Company has also formulated a Policy for determining material subsidiaries as approved which
can also be accessed on the Company's website at the link:
http:/iwww.ntcind.com/pdfiSTLD/ntc%20Policy%20on%20Material%20Subsidiary.pdf

DIRECTORS:
A. Details of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
Appointment Of Independent Directors:

At the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 5th September, 2014, the Members of the
Company appointed Mr. Gaurav Somani (DIN: 06368949), Sri Ravi Prakash Pincha (DIN : 00094895)
and Sr Dilip Chakraborty (DIN : 01839950) as Independent Directors under the Act for a term of up to
31stMarch, 2019.

Statement On Declaration Given By Independent Directors Under Sub- Section (6) Of Saction
149:

The Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors of the Company confirming
that thay meat the critaria of indepandanca as prescribed both under the Act and Regulation 25 of the
SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (Listing Regulation).

Key Managerial Personnel:

The Board of Diractors have re-appointaed Mr. Nilotpal Deb as the Managing Director of the Company
w.e.f 14.02.2016 for a period of 1{COne) year subject to the approval of members in the ensuing Annual
General Meeting of the Company.

Retirement by Rotation:

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of your
Company, Ms. Vembi Krishnamurthy Radha, Director of the Company, is due to retire by rotation at the
ensuing Annual General Meesting, and being eligible, offer himself for re-appointment.
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B. Nomination & Remuneration Policy
The Board of Directors have framed a policy which lays down a framework in relation to appointment,
remuneration and other matters provided in Section 178(3) of the Act for Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and senior Management Personnel of the Company. The same has been enclosed as an
annexure “A".

C. Board Evaluation
The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board commitiees
and individual directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the corporate govemance requirements
as prescribed under Listing Regulations. The performance of the Board was evaluated after seeking
inputs from all the directors on the basis of the criteria such as the Board composition and structure,
effectiveness of board procasses, information and functioning, ete.

The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee ("NRC") reviewed the performance of the
individual directors on the basis of the criteria such as the contribution of the individual director to the
Board and committee mesetings like preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful and
constructive contribution and inputs in meetings, etc. In addition, the Chairman was also evaluated on
the key aspects of his rola.

In a separate meeting of independent Directors held on 31.03.2016, performance of non-independent
directors, performance of the board as a whole and performance of the Chairman was evaluated, taking
into account the views of executive directors and non-execulive direclors. The same was discussed in
the board meating that followed the meeting of the independent Directors, at which the performance of
the Board, its committees and individual directors was also discussed.

The Director expressed their salisfaction over the evaluation process result there after,

D. Familiarisation Programme:
The Company has devised a programme for familiarisation of Indepeandent Directors with the Company,
their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates,
business model of the Company and related matters and the same has been put up on the website of the
Company at the link: htip:/fwww.ntcind.com/pdifSTLD!nte%%20F amiliarisation%20programme. pdf

COMMITTEES:

Audit Committee

The composition and terms of reference of the Audit Committee has been fumished in the Corporate
Governance Reporl forming a part of this Annual Reporl. There has been no instance where the Board has not
accepted the recommendations of the Audit Committee.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee
The compasition and terms of reference of the Momination and Remuneration Committee has been fumished in
the Corporate Governance Report forming a part of this Annual Report.

Share Transfer cum Stakeholders Relationship Commitiee

The compaosition and terms of referance of tha Share transfer cum Stakeholders Relationship Committea has
been furnished in the Corporate Governance Report forming & part of this Annual Report.

AUDITORS AND EXPLANATION TOAUDITOR'S REMARKS

Statutory Auditors

M/s 5. M. Daga & Co, Chartered Accountants were appointed as Statutory Auditors of your Company at the 23
Annual General Meeting held on 5 September, 2014 for a term of three consecutive years. As per the
provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, the appointment of Auditors is required to be ratified by
Members at every Annual General Meeting. Accordingly, the Board recommends to the Members of the
Company for ratification of the appointment of Mfs 5. M. Daga & Co, Chartered Accountants as the Statutory
Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2016-17. In this regard, M/s 5. M. Daga & Co, Chartered
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Accountants have submitted their written consent that they are eligible and qualified to be continue as Statutory
Auditors of the Company in terms of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and also satisfy the criteria
provided in Section 141 ofthe Companies Act, 2013.

The Auditors' Report to the shareholders for the year under review does not contain any qualifications or
adverse remarks. The Notes on Financial Statements referred to in the Auditors' Report are self-explanatory
and do not call for any further comments.

Secretarial Auditors

The Board has appointed Mr. Ram Mohan Goenka of M/s MR & Associates, Practicing Company Secrstary, to
conduct Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2015-16. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year
ended March 31, 2016 is annexad herewith marked as annexure “B” to this Report.

Explanation to the Observation raised in the Secretarial Audit Report
The Secretarial Audit Report contains an observation as follows:

Observation:

a) Suit had been filed by shareholders of the Company in Sealdah Civil & Criminal Court against
Resolution passed in pursuance of Section 180(1)(a) and 180(1)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the matter is subjudice.

b) The Company has not filed Form MGT-14 for appointment of [nternal Auditor for the financial year
2015-16.

Boards’ Reply:
a)On 05.01.20156 some minority shareholders have filed a suit against resolution passed by the
Company in the court of Learned Fourth Civil Judge (Junior Division) at Sealdah, West Bengal.
Company has filled its objection and reply and the matter is still subjudice in the court,
b) The form has besn left out inadvertently. The company has taken a note of the same and the same will
be complied with in this year.

EXTRACT OF THEANNUAL RETURN

The details forming part of the extract of Annual Return in form MGT-9 as required under section 92 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of Companies (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014 is annexed
hereto as annexure “C”.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the financial year 2015-16 Board Meetings were convened and held details of which are given in the
Corporate Governance Report. The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed
under the Companies Act, 2013.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

To the best of knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by them, your
directors make the following statement in terms of section 134(3)(c) and 134(5) of the companies act, 2013.

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2016, the applicable
accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures, if any;

(b) the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and the statement of profit and loss
ofthe company for that period;

(c) the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and otherirregularities;
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(d) the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(e) the directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively

(f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

PARTICULARS OF LOAN, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186

Particulars of loans given, investments made, guarantees given and securities provided along with the purpose
for which the loan or guarantee or security is proposed to be utilized by the recipient are provided in the notes to
standalone financial statement.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS ORARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered into by the Company during the financial year with Related
Parties as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations were in the ordinary course of
business and on an arm's length basis.

There are no materially significant related party transactions made by the Company with promoters, directors,
key managerial personnel or other designated persons which may have a potential conflict with the interest of
the Company atlarge.

The details of the related Party transaction in Form AOC-2 is enclosed and marked as Annexure “D*.

All related party transactions are placed before the Audit Committee for its approval. In accordance with
Accounting Standard 18, the Related Party Transactions are disclosed under Note No2.29 of the Standalone
Financial Statements.

Your Company has framed a Policy on materiality of related party transactions and dealing with related party
transactions as approved by the Board. The same can be accessible on the Company's website at the link:
http://www.ntcind.com/pdf/STLD/ntc%20Pollcy%200n%20Material%20Subsidiary.pdf

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

A separate report on Management Discussion and Analysis containing a detailed analysis of the Company’s
perfarmance as per Regulation 34 of the Listing Regulations is annexed hersto.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A separate report on Corporate Governance along with the Certificate from the Auditors of the Company, as
required by Regulation 17(7) of the Listing Regulation for its due compliance is annexed hereto, forming part of
this Annual Report.

A certificate of the CEO and CFO of the Company in terms of Regulation 17(8) of Listing Regulations, infer alia,
confirming the correctness of the financial statement, adequacy of the internal control measures and reporting
of the matters to the Audit Committee is also annexed.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY

There have been no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company which
have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate
and the date of the report.
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY, ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND
OUTGO

The particulars relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange eamings and
outgo, as required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, are provided in annexure “E” to this Report.

RISKMANAGEMENT POLICY

Your Company has developed and implemented a Risk Management framework which consist of Plan &
Policies pursuant to requirement of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with provisions of the SEB|
(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015.

In this ever changing economic environment, your company is exposed to various risks such as market risk,
financial risk, liquidity risk, principally interest rate risk, credit risk and risks associated with the economy,
regulations, competition among others. The aforesaid Risk Management framework helps in identifying,
assessing, monitoring and mitigation of various risks to key business objectives. The Audit Committee of the
company oversee and evaluate overall risk management framework which is periodically reviewed by the
Board of Directors to ensure that the executive management controls the risk as per decided policy.

The risk management issues are discussed in detail in the Management Discussion and Analysis.
ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company's internal control systems are commensurate with the nature of its business and the size and
complexity of operations. These systems are routinely tested and certified by Statutory as well as Internal
Auditor and cover all offices, factories and key business areas. Significant audit observations and follow up
actions thereon are reported to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee reviews adequacy and
effectiveness of the Company's internal control environment and monitors the implementation of audit
recommendations, including those relating to strengthening of the Company’s risk management policies and
systems.

VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has formulated and published a Whistle Blower Policy to provide Vigil Mechanism for employees
including directors of the Company to report genuine concerns. The provisions of this policy are in line with the
provisions of the Section 177(9) of the Act and the Listing Regulations with stock exchanges and it can be
accessed at http://www.ntcind.com/pdf/STLD/ntc%20Vigilance%20Mechanism.pdf.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Your Company believes in best HR practices by providing its employees a world class working environment,
giving them equal opportunities to rise and grow. We continue to implement the best of HR policies so as to
ensure that talent retention is ensured at all levels. Employee relations continued to be cordial and harmonious
atall levels and in all divisions of the Company during the year.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Details pursuant to section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 form part of this Report and are
annexed herewith as annexure “F”.

None of the employees ofthe Company is in receipt of remuneration exceeding the limits prescribed under Rule
5(2) ofthe Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.
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HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Your Company has complied with all the laws applicable to the Company. The Company has been complying
with relevant laws and has been taking all necessary measures to protect the environment and maximize
worker protection and safety.

DEPOSITS

The Company has not invited or accepted deposits from the public covered under Section 73 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and The Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNAL

There was no significant and material order passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going
concern status and Company's operations in future.

DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL)ACT, 2013

An Internal Complaints Committee has been constituted under the Anti Sexual Harassment Policy approved by
the Board of Diractors of the Company, which provides a forum to all female personnel to lodge complaints (if
any) therewith for redressal.

Your directors further state that during the year under review, thers were no casss filed pursuant to the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)Act, 2013.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Your Directors wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation to the shareholders, bankers, business
associates, retailers, suppliers, customers, government and other regulatory agencies for their continued
support and faith in the Company. Your Board is grateful to the Independent Directors for their valuable
contributions. All of them despite other business exigencies have shared their rich experience and knowledge
with the management to take your Company forward. Your Directors are also wish to place on record their
appreciation for the whole-hearted co-operation, dedication, commitment and contribution made by all the
employees and Jook forward to their continued support. Inspired by this vision, driven by values and powered by
internal vitality, your Directors and employees look forward to the future with confidence and stand committed to
creating an even brighter future for all stakeholders.

For & on behalf of the Board

Nilotpal Deb Ravi Prakash Pincha
Managing Director Director

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30" Day of May, 2016
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Annexure “A”
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY
INTRODUCTION

This policy on nomination and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management
has been formulated by the Committee and approved by the Board of Directors.

OBJECTIVES OF THE COMMITTEE
The Committee shall:

i. Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director
and recommend fo the Board a policy relating to the remuneration of Directors, key managerial
personnel and other employees.

ii. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Director and the Board

iii. Devising a policy on Board diversity.

iv. ldentify persons who are qualified to become Director and persons who may be appointed in Key
Managerial and Senior Management positions in accordance with the criterialaid down in this policy.

v. Recommend to the Board, appointment and removal of Director, KMP and Senior Management
Personnel.

EFFECTIVE DATE

The following policy has been formulated by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and adopted by the

Board of Directors at its meeting held on 13" February, 2015.This policy shall be operational with immediate
effect.

DEFINITIONS:

“Board” : Board means Board of Directors of the Company.

“Director” : Directors means Directors of the Company.

“Committee” : Committee means Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Company as constituted or reconstituted by the Board, from time to time.

“Company” : Company means ntcindustries limited.

“Independent Director” : As provided under clause 49 of the Listing Agreement and/or under the

Companies Act, 2013, ‘Independent director’ shall mean a non-executive
director, other than a nominee director of the company:

a.who, inthe opinion of the Board, is a person of integrity and possesses relevant expertise and experience;

b. (i) whois orwas not a promoter of the company or its holding, subsidiary or associate company;
(i) whois notrelated to promoters ordirectors in the company, its holding, subsidiary or associate company;

c. apart from receiving director's remuneration, has or had no pecuniary relationship with the company, its
holding, subsidiary or associate company, or their promoters, or directors, during the two immediately
preceding financial years or during the currentfinancial year,;
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d. none of whose relatives has or had pecuniary relationship or transaction with the company, its holding,
subsidiary or associate company, or their promoters, or directors, amounting to two per cent. or more of its
gross turnover or total income or fifty lakh rupees or such higher amount as may be prescribed, whichever is
lower, during the two immediately preceding financial years or during the current financial year;

e. who, neither himself nor any of his relatives —

(i) holds or has held the position of a key managerial personnsl or is or has been employee of the
company or its holding, subsidiary or associate company in any of the three financial years
immediately preceding the financial ysar in which he is proposed to be appointed;

(ii) is or has been an employee or proprietor or a partner, in any of the three financial years
immediately preceding the financial yearin which he is proposed to be appointed, of —
(A) a firm of auditors or company secretaries in practice or cost auditors of the company or
its holding, subsidiary or associate company; or
(B) any legal or a consulting firm that has or had any transaction with the company, its
holding, subsidiary or associate company amounting to ten per cent or more of the gross
turnover of such firm;

(iii) holds togsether with his relatives two per cent or mare of the total voting power of the company; or

(iv) is a Chief Executive or director, by whatever name called, of any non-profit organization that
receives twenty-five per cent or mare of its receipts from the company, any of its promoters,
directors or its holding, subsidiary or associate company or that holds two per cent or more of the
total voting power of the company;

(v) isamaterial supplier, service provider or customeror alessor or lessee of the company;

f.whois notless than 21 years of age.

“Key Managerial Personnel” :- Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) means-

(i) the Chief Executive Officer or the managing director or the manager;

(i) the Company Secretary;

(iii) the Whole-Time Director;

(iv)  the Chief Financial Officer; and

(v) such other officer as may be prescribed under the applicable statutory provisions / regulations

“Senior Management”: The expression "senior management" means personnsl of the company who are
members of its core management team excluding Board of Directors comprising all members of management
one level below the executive directors, including the functional heads.

Unless the context otherwise requires, words and expressions used in this policy and not defined herein but
defined in the Companies Act, 2013 as may be amended from time to time shall have the meaning respectively
assigned to them therein.

APPLICABILITY
The Policy is applicable to
« Directors (Executive and Non Executive)

« KeyManagerial Personnel
« Senior Management Personnel
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CONSTITUTION OF THE NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board has the power to constitute/ reconstitute the Committee from time to time in order to make it
consistent with the Company's policy and applicable statutory requirement.

Atpresent, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of following Directors:
i Mr. Dllip Chakraborty (Independent Director)
i, Mr. Gaurav Somani (Independent Director)
i, Mr. Ravi Prakash Pincha (Independent Director)

GENERAL APPOINTMENT CRITERIA

i The Committee shall consider the ethical standards of integrity and probity, qualification, expertise and
experience of the person for appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and
accordingly recommend to the Board his / her appointment.

i The Company should ensure that the person so appointed as Director/ Independent Director/ KMP/
Senior Management Personnel shall not be disqualified under the Companies Act, 2013, rules made
thereunder, Listing Agreement or any other enactment for the time being in force.

iii. The Director/ Independent Director/ KMP/ Senior Management Personnel shall be appointed as perthe
procedure laid down under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, rules made thereunder, Listing
Agreementor any other snactment for the time being in force.

ADDITIONAL CRITERIA FOR APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Committee shall consider qualifications for Independent Directors as mentioned in herein earlier under the
head 'Definitions’ and also their appointment shall be governed as per the provisions of clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement (as amended from time to time ) and Companies Act, 2013.

TERM / TENURE

The Term / Tenure of the Directors shall be governed as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules
made thereunder as amended from time to time.

REMOVAL

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Companies Act, 2013, rules made thereunder or under
any other applicable Act, rules and regulations or any other reasonable ground, the Commiltee may
recommend to the Board for removal of a Director, KMP or Senior Management Personnel subject to the
provisions and compliance of the said Act, rules and regulations.

CRITERIA FOR EVALUATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR AND THE BOARD
Following are the Criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent Directors and the Board;

1. Executive Directors:
The Executive Directors shall be evaluated on the basis of targets / Criteria given to executive Directors
by the board from time to time

2. Non Executive Director:
The Non Executive Directors shall be evaluated on the basis of the following criteria i.e. whether they:
(a) actobjectively and constructively while exercising their duties;

(b) exercise their responsibilities in a bona fide manner in the interest of the company;

(c) devote sufficient time and aftention to their professional obligations for informed and balanced
decision making;

(d) do not abuse their position to the detriment of the company or its shareholders or for the purpose
of gaining direct or indirect personal advantage or advantage for any associated person;
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(e)

rafrain from any action that would lead fo loss of his independence

i) inform the Board immediately when they lose their independence,

() assist the company in implamenting the bast corporate governance practices.

{h) strive to attend all meetings of the Board of Directors and the Commitiees;

(i) pariicipafe constructively and actively in the committees of the Board in which they are
chairpersons or members;

(i strive to attend the general meetings of the company;

(k) keap themselves well informed about the company and the external environment in which it
operales;

)] do nof to unfairly obstruct the functioning of an otherwise proper Board or commitiee of the
Board;

{m) moderate and arbitrate in the interest of the company as a whole, in situations of conflict
between management and shareholder's interest.

{n) abide by Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, company's policies and
procedures including code of conduct, insider frading guidefines efc.

COMPENSATION STRUCTURE

1. Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors:
The Nan- Executive Independent Director may receive remuneration by way of sitting fees for
attending meetings of Board or Committee thereof. Provided that the amount of such fees shall
be subject to ceiling/ limits as provided under Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder
or any other enactment for the time being in force.

2. Remuneration to Executive Directors, Key Managerial Personnel(s) (KMPs) & Senior

Management Personnel (s) (SMPs):

The Company has a credible and transparent framework in determining and accounting for the
remuneration of the Managing Director / Whole Time Directors (MD/WTDs), Key Managerial
Personnel(s) (KMPs) and Senior Management Personnel(s) (SMPs). Their remuneration are
governed by the external competitive environment, track record, potential, individual
performance and performance of the company as well as industry standards.,

The remuneration determined for MD/WTDs are approved by the Board of Directors and
members at the next general meeting of the Company and by the Central Government in case
such appointment is at variance to the conditions specified in Schedule V. As a policy, the
Executive Direclors are neither paid sitting fee nor any commission.

APPROVAL AND PUBLICATION

(i)

(i)
(iii)

This remuneration policy as framed by the Committea shall be recommended fo the Board of
Directors for its approval.

This policy shall be hosted on the Company's website.

The policy shall form part of Director's report to be issued by the Board of Directors in terms of
Companies Act, 2013

SUPPLEMENTARY PROVISIONS

(i}
(ii)

(i}

This Policy shall formally be implemented from the date on which they are adopted pursuanttoa
resolution of the Board of Directors.

Any matters not provided for in this Policy shall be handled in accordance with relevant State
laws and regulations and the Company's Articles of Association. If this Policy conflict with any
laws or regulations subsequently promulgated by the state or with the Company's Articles of
Association as amended pursuant to lawful procedura, the relevant state laws and regulations
and the Company's Articles of Association shall prevail, and this Policy shall be amended in a
timely manner and submitted to the Board of Directors for review and adoption.

The right ta interpret this Policy vests in the Board of Directors of the Company.

i indusirias Imsd

AMNLUAL REPORT _ 20B-18 PAGE #13



Annexure "B”

MR & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries
46, B. B. Ganguly Street,
Kolkata-700012
Moblie No: 9831074332
Email : goenkamohan@hotmail.com

Form No. MR - 3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2016

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]'

To,

The Members,
NTCINDUSTRIES LIMITED
149, B.T.Road, Kamarhati
Kolkata- 700058

1. We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by NTC INDUSTRIES LIMITED (hereinafter called the company).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

2. Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents
and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion,
the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31* March,2016 complied with
the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

3. We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and retums filed and other records maintained
by the Company for the financial year ended on 31* March, 2016, to the extent applicable, according to the
provisions of:

iy The CompaniesAct, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation)Act, 1956 ("'SCRA") and the rules made thereunder;
iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv) Foreign Exchange ManagementAct, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent
of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
Act, 1992 ("SEBIAct') :-
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;
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(h)

(i)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009 (NotApplicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations,
2014 (NotApplicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008 (NotApplicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Actand dealing with client;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 (Not
Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; (Not
Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and other applicable regulations /guidelines/circulars as may be issued by
SEBIfromtimetotime, to the extent applicable.

We further report that having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and as per the
representation made by the Management, the Company has complied with the following laws applicable
specifically to the Company:

a) TobaccoBoardAct, 1975

b) Tobacco CessAct, 1975

c) Cigarettes and Other Tobacco Products ( Prohibition of Advertisement and Regulation of Trade and
Commerce, Production, Supply and Distribution) Act, 2003 (COPTA)

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i)

(ii)

Secretarial Standards 1 and 2 issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India, effective
w.e.f1*July' 2015.

The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited and Calcutta Stock
Exchange Limited.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations:

a. Suit has been filed by shareholders of the Company in Sealdah Civil & Criminal Court against
Resolution passed in pursuance of Section 180(1) (a) and 180(1) (b) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the matteris subjudice.

b. The Company has not filad Form MGT-14 for appointment of Internal Auditor for the financial year 2015-

16.

nte industres limited
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Woe further report that

The Board of Directors ofthe Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors
that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at Ieast seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation atthe
mesting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings were carried out unanimously as recorded in the
minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committees of the Board, as the case may be.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the
size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed “Annexure A” and forms an Integral
Partofthis Report.

For MR & Associates
Company Secretaries

[M R Goenka]
Partner

FCS No.:4515
C P No.:2551

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30.05.2016
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FORM - MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Annexure “C"

As on financial year ended on 31.03.2016
Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1 [CIN L70109WEB 1991PLCO53562

2 |Registration Data 151111891

3 |Name of the Company NTC INDUSTRIES LIMITED

4 |CategoryfSub-category of the Company Company Limited by shares

5 |Address of the Registered office & contact details 149, B.T. Road, Kamarthati,
Kolkata - 700058, Tele: 033-
30190513, e-mail:
investors@ntcind com;
Waebsite:www.ntcind.com

6 |Whether listed company Yes

7 |Name, Address & contact details of the Registrar & Transfer M/s Niche Technologies Private

Agent, I any. Limited

D-511, Bagree Market, 71, B.R.B.
Basu Road,
5th Floor, Kolkata — 700 001
Phaone No, 033-2234-3576,

L. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY |

(&l the business activilias condribating 10 % or more of the tofal lwm

gwar of the company shall be statbed)

8. Mame and Description of main products | services NIC Code of the % 1o total turnover of the
_No, Productiseryice
1 [Manufachure of cigareties, cigaredle lobacco 12003 B2.01%
o -
. |PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Holding! Subsidiary/ %of | Applicable
BN Hame and sddress of the Company CIN/GLN " i ; ~s
1 |NTCIL INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LTD | UTD102WEB2014PTC203282 | WHOLLY OWSED SUBSIDIARY | 100 2(B7)
2 |NTCIL REAL ESTATE PRIVATE LTD UFDI0WE2014PTC20320E | WHOLLY OAMMED SLIBSIDIARY 100 <1BT)
4 |WTCIL REALTY FRIVATE LTI UTDI0WERD14PTC2032E3 | WHOLLY CAWHED SLBSIDIARY 100 2{BETY
4 |NTCIL SILIGURI ESTATE PRIVATE LTD LI7002WE2D14PTCI0E285 | WHOLLY OWKNED SUBSIDWRY | 100 2(BT)

i indusirias Imsd
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M. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN
(Evuily Shiid Capin ! Do nies irs parooet Lo ol ol adpaiy)

I} Catmgary-wiss Share lsiding
Eatngary of Stamhaidars Mo = S=ares Farld at Ihe Gogering o = gasr Mo of SEares heid o the and of [he pear % Coangs
_ [AsondtAarhatig on 31 March3101 Burieg tho yusr
Oe=al Physical Total % of Teml Damm Physizai Tortal % of Total
Enardas Brargs
A,
|1|I'hﬁ'|
8] ingi=idual! HUF o L TR 4 2035 TEd L3 M A AT E A B, T A 74 1
) Casiral Gendl
| o) St Gova]
s o Z58 7] 2387 P2 M T PECYEE EZE
Banis | F
(1] 2y et
| Bul Total (a) (1] TA5% 150 T, 28,169 Ef.af T, 258, 1 7,253,180 BT AT 0.30|
o] MR redireid visis
b!ﬂhﬂ'llﬂtﬂlﬂh
&) Bodlis Cofp
| o) Ay other
MT&HE“E
TOTAL §A) 7,250,139 7,250.168 BT AT 7.251,198 7,353.1% AT 0o
B Publlc Sharsholding
T inetituticns
] Mulual Funds
) Barres 111 5 1, FYT B 1.0 = o TF
o Canrml Giosl
| o] Sitatm Crtfn)
] Variiife Finila
| 1) Fils
hi Fomege Venlure Caplal
| | Chhwirs (asicily) B i e o) L Y el EE]
Sub-botal JBX1]- 500 1,50 2408 anz 1308 1,600 [I7] [[FiH
2 Non-los nrotong
| o] B iy, Corp,
1 insian 505,551 L5500 1oaz 08t FT) 807,01 4550 oeagin BT 0.3
i} Cleernsar
I T
1) Ingtvidul shansholsors 134870 FTEEE 153503 14.18 1,244 95 SPeAUE 1519358 1413 nng|
|:“:"‘“““‘:"m::: :I T840 18,500] TH3 149 fin M, 202 18,50 #5718 7.4 ngs
| o) Difre: [mpociiy)
ke Pl indars gﬁﬂl 50 P [a¥. v g % 045 08T iy
Foraign Muk i
Ciparing Memiam BhG13 AEE12 =X . =] bt} BE 258 0.5 .04
Trax
Foraign Bodias - DR
| Sub-total {3} E P 20305 E e X 348 £l gae
| Tetal Public {B) 8,154,588 32335 3,406 Bl BRE1| 3155408 341,308 5,408, B [FEC| [T
€. Shares sald By Centodian far a0y
QDR & ADRSs
[Grand Tou (AvBec] | vhaer,7a8 42335 | 10,799,000 60,50 15,408,888 341,363 | W5,780,500 180,00 .|
{ii) Bhareholding of Promotar
Skarutesld % & i Boginnisg ol tha Fear Eharemalidieg af the end of thi yair
W craEnpe i
TR Srambciders’ Name LT mﬂ.. il e mﬂ it mharshakilng
Ho. of S Bnares o =& o et Mo, of Sharmes Bharea = the i et during iha year
EORRRY | setsi shares E, Potal mhiaims
i Anir Conrraciions Py L TR, (0 J4an AREOh Aal
Fhsirsd inewssames i Ared
2 Fi = L R LE &g w1 R AATF
a Hii@ia Desd iga’ L ] neh ERLEY QoR
Il Lk Pappenie P Limiled ATF A0 LRt TFAGD as
[ Pyramis G Pyt Lid Tl 135 ian T8, 135 [T 1]
a Fekhs Jhakak EE3D oon Fa-- i oox
T Shesial Dsger 803,434 1780 4,503,434 iTa8
n Burdar Lal Duger L ] 8.7 BB, TO0 27T
[l Surdar Lal Duger b7, 300 o a7, 500 oAy
50 Winod Dugmt 2088, 023 -5 2,084.023 1034
mn Winod Tugar HE 400 043 2 A0 o043
i et msTee Dugw 120, S LAE 120 LAz
TOGTAL ter LR ] BT AT T8 10 BT AT
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{iii} Change in Promoters' Sharaholding (please specify, if thera is no change)

8N Particulars Date Reason | Shareholding at the beginning | Cumulative Shareholding during|
of the year the year
No. of shares Y% of total | Mo. of shares % of total
shares shares
1 Al tha baginning of the yea 08 25 T.255 188 BT AT % T.253, 180 07 &T%
Changes during tha yaar | Wy CAMIGES DLIRTKG THE YEAR |
AE e erad of the yoar F 253,198 O &M%

{iv) Eharahnlding'Fattarn of top ten'ﬂharahuldm
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

8. No.  |For Each of the Top 10 Shareholding at the beginning |Cumulative Shareholding during|
Shareholders of the year the year
No. of shares % of total No. of shares % of total
shares of the shares of the
1| ARTI SHUKLA
a) Al tha Begining of the Year 0 0.000
b) Changes during the year
Date Reason
2B/08/2015 Transfer 45600 0424 45600 0424
c) At the End of the Year 45600 0.424

2| BABITA KISHANGOPAL BANG

a) At the Begining of the Year 122700 1.141

b) Changes during the year

Data Reason

10/04/2015 Transfer 100 0.001 122800 1.142
17/04/2015 Transfer -2500 0.023 120300 1.118
22/05/2015 Transfer -800 0.007 119500 1.12
05/06/2015 Transfer <3000 0.028 116500 1.084
11/08/2015 Transfer 3603 0.034 120103 1.117
081012015 Transfer 1000 0.009 121103 1.127
1812712015 Transfer -1000 0.009 120103 1.117
) At the End of the Year 120103 1.17
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Sl. No. For Each of the Top 10 Shareholding at the beginning | Cumulative Shareholding during|
Shareholders of the year the year
No. of shares % of total No. of shares % of total
shares of the shares of the
GUNJAN K BANG
a) At the Begining of the Year 50100 0,468
b) Changes during the yvear
Date Reason
22052015 Transfar -1100 0.010 45000 0.456
28/05/2015 Transfer 2281 0.021 46719 0.435
05/06/2015 Transfer -T18 0.007 46000 D428
2B8/08/2015 Transfer 67 0.001 4B0BT 0.4289
0402015 Transfar 433 0,004 46500 0.433
1140872015 Transfer a3 0.001 46583 0.433
18/08/2015 Transfer 667 0.006 47260 0.440
30092015 Translar 500 0.005 47750 0.444
2041172015 Transfer 2450 0.023 45300 0.421
D41 272015 Transfer -1871 0.017 43429 0,404
18/12/2015 Transler 3123 0.029 40306 0.375
251202015 Transfar -2 806 0.026 47500 0.344
122015 Transfer G000 0.058 31500 0.283
0B/01/2016 Transfer -1500 0.014 30000 0.279
15/01/2016 Transfer 1042 0.010 28958 0.269
2210112016 Transfar -850 0.018 27008 0,251
20V01/2018 Transfer -27008 0.251 0 0.000
25/03/2016 Transfer 27008 0.251 27008 0.251
) Al the End of the Year 27008 0.251
KARAN K BANG
a) At the Begining of the Year 117600 1,084
b) Changes during the yaar
Data Reason
22/05/2015 Transfar -600 0.006 117000 1.088
200502015 Transfer -1000 0.008 116000 1.0789
290172016 Transfer 1100 0.010 117100 1.089
) Al the End of the Year 117100 1.088
MAHESH BABU
a) At the Bagining of the Year 23778 D221
b} Changes during the year
Date Reason
28/08/2015 Transfer arazz 0.348 61000 0.567
04/08/2015 Transfer 16982 0.158 77882 0.725
081102015 Transfar 2000 0.014 TaRg2 0,744
16/1072015 Transfer 2000 0.019 Tros2 0.725
o) Al the End of the Year 7rog2 0.725
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Sl. No. For Each of the Top 10 Shareholding at the beginning | Cumulative Shareholding during|
Shareholders of the year the year
No. of shares % of total No. of shares % of total
shares of the shares of the
& |MAHESHWARI PLAZA RESORTS LIMITED
|a) Al the Begining of the Year 336281 3.128
|b} Changes during the year
Date Reason
1710472015 Transfer 5354 0.050 341635 3.178
{01/0572015 Transfer 5303 0.050 347028 3.228
15052015 Transfar araz2 0.035 350760 3263
22105/2015 Transfar 1849 n.ov 352608 3280
120672015 Transfer -25 0.000 352684 3.280
1806/2015 Transfer -1000 0.008 351584 3.271
26/0672015 Transfar -28 0.0 351558 3270
) AL the End of the Year 351558 3270
7{MANJU PAWANKUMAR SONI
a} Al the Bagining of the Year 0 0.000
|b) Changes during the year
Date Reason
| 080052015 Transfar Trod 0.073 TTa8 0.073
22/05/2015 Translar 3408 0.032 11207 0.104
|05/06/2015 Transfer 8793 0.091 21000 0.195
2312015 Transfer 1728 0016 22729 0.211
SW1V2015 Transfer 2000 0018 24720 0.230
131142015 Transfar gor 0.008 20686 0.239
20¢11/2015 Transfer 1 0.000 25687 0.239
|04/1 272015 Transfer a013 0.028 28700 0.267
|c) At the End of the Yaar ZATOO 0.267
B|MULTIPLEX CAPITAL LTD
a} Al the Begining of the Year 58730 0.556
|b) Changes during the year
Date Reason
1047201 5 Transfer 2010 0.019 5TT20 0.537
280052015 Transfar -BE07 0.080 489113 0457
|05/06/2015 Transfar -10383 0.087 38730 0.360
1210672015 Transfer 2355 0.022 36375 0.338
18/06/2015 Transfer -1500 0014 34875 0.324
26/06/2015 Transfar =h25 0.005 34350 0.320
17072015 Transfer =86 0.001 34064 0.319
24/07/2015 Transfer 2 0.000 266 0.319
28/08/2015 Transfer -B432 0.008 33424 0.311
|040H2015 Transfar 200 0.002 33624 0.313
1102015 Transker 2224 0.021 35848 0.333
18/09/2015 Transfer 8543 0.079 44301 0.413
250072015 Transfer 233 0.002 44624 0415
JWOHN2015 Transfer =200 0.002 44424 0413
161072015 Transfer =11000 0.102 33424 0.311
28/01/2016 Transfer BS0 0.008 34274 0.318
|0502/2016 Transfer =400 0004 33874 0.315
1200272016 Transfar 450 0.004 33424 0.31
11032016 Transher 328 0.003 3ars52 0.314
25/03/2016 Transfer 3635 0.034 37387 0.348
A1/0372016 Transfar -1578 0.015 35808 0.333
c) Al the End of tha Year 35808 0.333

i indusirias Imsd

AMNUAL REPORT _ 20ME=18 PAGE #21



5l. No. For Each of the Top 10 Shareholding at the beginning |Cumulative Shareholding ﬂurhul
Shareholders of the year the year
No. of shares % of total No. of shares % of total
shares of the shares of the
S{NORTH CITY COMMODITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
a) Al the Begining of the Year 126817 1.180
b) Changes during the year
Drate Feason
17042015 Transfer ) 0.001 126873 1.180
240402015 Transfar 487 0.088 136360 1.268
19/06/2015 Transfar -136360 1.268 0 0,000
c} Af the End of the Year [i] 0,000
10 |RAJIV AGRAWAL
a) At the Begining of the Year 85000 0.605
b) Changes during the year
Date Reason
10/042015 Transfar 1 0.000 BE001 0606
17/04/2015 Transfer B0 0.001 85081 0.605
24/04/2015 Transfer 605 0.006 G5686 0,611
01052015 Transfar -306 0.003 B5380 0,608
DEDS2016 Transfer [t 0.001 G450 0,608
15/06/2015 Transfar 450 0.004 BS000 0605
D5/06/2015 Transfar -500 0.005 64500 0,600
26/06/2015 Tranafer 1400 0.013 G5E00 0613
00E2015 Translar 53 0.000 65953 0614
03/07/2015 Transfer 149 0.001 66102 0.615
10/0TI2015 Transfer 1 0.000 GE103 0615
17/07/2015 Transfer 2 0.000 BE105 0.615
07 DB2015 Transfer 8 0,000 66113 0615
21082015 Transhar 200 0002 BE313 0617
28/08/2015 Transfer 1668 0.016 67082 0.632
04082015 Transfer 2650 0.025 TOE32 0.657
11/09/2015 Transfar 200 0.002 70832 0.659
250912015 Transfar 200 0.002 71032 0,661
0EM02015 Transher 50 0.000 71082 0661
16/10/2015 Transfer -100 0.001 70082 0.660
131172015 Transfar &0 0.000 T1032 0.661
20/11/2015 Transfar 50 0.000 71082 0.661
27M11/2015 Transfer 400 0.004 71482 0,665
181212015 Transfar 25 0.000 T1607 0,665
25/12/2015 Transfer -525 0.005 70082 0.650
1212015 Transfer =1000 0.008 62082 0.651
22/01/2016 Transfer 250 0.002 70232 0.653
2801/2016 Transfer 250 0.002 To4a2 0,656
05022016 Transfar 200 0.002 TOBE2 0.658
c) At the End of the Year 70682 0,658
11 |SHRUTI KOTHARI .
a) At the Begining of the Year 52500 0.488
b} Changes during the year [ND CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c] Af the End of the Year | ] 52800 [ 0488

i indusirias Imsd

AMNLUAL REPORT _ 20B-18 PAGE #22



Sl. No. For Each of the Top 10 Shareholding at the beginning [Cumulative Shareholding during
Shareholders of the year the year
No. of shares % of total No. of shares % of total
shares of the shares of the
12|SPFL SECURITIES LTD.
a) At the Begining of the Year 46222 0.430
b) Changes during the year
Date Reason
10/04/2015 Transfer 10000 0.093 56222 0.523
29/05/2015 Transfer -509 0.005 55713 0.518
05/06/2015 Transfer 16109 0.150 71822 0.668
12/06/2015 Transfer 11000 0.102 82822 0.770
19/06/2015 Transfer 5923 0.055 88745 0.826
26/06/2015 Transfer 4667 0.043 93412 0.869
30/06/2015 Transfer 1050 0.010 94462 0.879
28/08/2015 Transfer -79220 0.737 15242 0.142
04/09/2015 Transfer -15242 0.142 0 0.000
25/09/2015 Transfer 2000 0.019 2000 0.019
09/10/2015 Transfer -2000 0.019 0 0.000
c) At the End of the Year 0 0.000
13[|ULTIMATE INFRABUILD PRIVATE LIMITED
a) At the Begining of the Year 141325 1.315
b) Changes during the year
Date Reason
05/06/2015 Transfer 2550 0.024 143875 1.338
19/06/2015 Transfer 136360 1.268 280235 2.607
26/06/2015 Transfer 10000 0.093 290235 2.700
25/09/2015 Transfer 6500 0.060 296735 2.760
16/10/2015 Transfer 1500 0.014 298235 2.774
23/10/2015 Transfer 1500 0.014 299735 2.788
04/12/2015 Transfer 265 0.002 300000 2.791
11/12/2015 Transfer -300000 2.791 0 0.000
18/03/2016 Transfer 300000 2.791 300000 2.791
c) At the End of the Year 300000 2.791
TOTAL 1142053 10.624 1227042 11.414

Note: Increase / decrease in shareholding as stated above is based on details of beneficial ownership
furnished by the Depositories.
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v} Sharaholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel;

Bhareholding at the beginning | Cumulative Shareholding during the
of tha year yaar
Shareholding of sach Directors
BN and sach Key Managerial % of total
Personnal Mo. of shares " No. of shares % of total shares

HILOTPAL DEB

i a) Al the: Begining of the Year 0 0.000
k) Changes during the year [NO CHAMGES DURING THE YEAR]
) At the End of the Year i) 0000
RAVI PRAKASH PINCHA

5 a) Al the Begining of the Year SE00 0.062
b) Changes during the year [NO CHAMGES DURING THE YEAR)]
] Al the End of the Year SE00 0,052
GAURAV BOMANI

4 aj) At the Begining of the Year il 0000
b} Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
] Al the End af the Yedar o 0.000
DILIP CHAKRABORTY

4 a) Al the Begining of the Year 0 0.000
b)) Changes during thi yaar [NO CHAMGES DURING THE YEAR]
) At tha End of the Year 1] 0,000
VEMBI H.RADHA,

% a) Al the Begining of the Year 1] o.ooo
b) Changes during the year [NO CHAMGES DURING THE YEAR]
) At the End of the Year 1] 0,000
PREM CHAND KHATOR

g aj At the Begining of the Year 0 0000
b} Changes during the year [WO CHAMNGES DURING THE YEAR]
] Al ki End of the Yoar o 0000
SUNIL KUMAR VARMA

7 aj) At the Begining of the Year i 0000
by} Changes during the year [NO CHAMGES DURING THE YEAR]
) Al the End of the Year 1] 0,000

i indusirias Imsd
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[V, INDEBTEDNESS

|Indebledness of the Company incheding Interest outstanding/accreed but not due for payment.

[As. in Lacs)

5N Particulars
1 |Indebtedress at the inmi

of the

Secured Loans excluding

Unsecured Loans

Total

i Principal Amount

46,045,553.00

20,000.000.00

BE,048,553 00

Il] Interesat dus bl not paid

i) Irberest acerued bl nod due

Total (i+ii+iii)

45,048, 553.00

20,000, 000.00

BE,048,553.00

2 |Change in Indebtedness during the

* Addifion

* Reduction

18,788,953.00

18,788,853.00

M

18,788, 953.00

16,788, 953.00

3 Indebtedness at the and of the financial

i] Principal Amount

27 ,248,800.00

20,000,000.00

47,248,600.00

i} Imterast dus but not pald

ilij Interasl pooneed but nol due

Tokal {iii+ii]

27,240,600.00

20,000,000.00

47,249,600.00

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

BM. Particulars of Remuneration

Name of MD/WTD/ Manager

Total Amount

Mame

Nilolpal Deb

Designation

Managing Directar

1 |Gross salary

(8] Salary a5 per provisions conlained in

574 ,408.00

574,409.00

(b} Value of perguisites w's 17(2} Incoma-

(c} Profits in lieu of zalary under section
1713} Income- tax Act, 1961

2 |Siock Option

3 |Sweal Equily

Commission

4 |- as % of profit

- others, specify

§ |Others, please specify

- Contribution to Provident fund

28.376.00

28,376.00

Tolal (A)

603,785.00

603, 785.00

Ceiling as per the Act (@@ 10% of profils
calculated

10% of Met profit for all Executive Directors -

Managing and Whole-time Directors;

B. Remuneration to other Direciors

SN. |Particulars of Remunaration

Hame of Direciors

1 |Independant Céraclors

Mr. Gauray somanli

Mr. Dilip
Chakraborty

Mr. Rawvi
Prakash
Pincha

Me. Vembl

HKrishnamurthy

Faa for attending boan committes

Commission

Cithers, please specify

Total (1)

2 |Cihar Non-Executive Direchors

Ms. Vembl Krishnamurthy
Radha

Fizg or albending boand comrmilbes

Commission

Cithors, plasse specify

Total (2)

Todal (B)={1+2)

Total Maragerial Remunarafion

Dverall Ceiling as per the Act

15 of Nel Profits of the Company for all Non-Exscutive Directors

i indusirias Imsd
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C. Remunesalion 1o Key Managerial Personnel olber than MD/Manager/WTD
8M. |Particulars of Remuneration Namea of Key Managerial Personnel Total Amount

Mame Mr. Prem Chand Khator Mr. Sunil Kumar (Ra/Lac)
Designation CFO Cs
1 |Gross salary

(&) Selary as per provisions contained In
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
ib) Value of perquisiles wa 172} Income-
{1z} Profits in lleu of salary under section
Stock Opllon

Sweal Equity

Commisgion

4 |- as % of profit

= others, specify

5 |Others, please specify

- Contribution to Provident fund 57,600.00 - 57 600,00
Total 1,076,7080,00 372 382.00 1,449, 172.00

1,019, 1890.00 AT E82.00 1.391,572.00

b | g

Vil. PENALTIES ! PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of the Companies | Brief Description | Detsils of Penalty /| Authority [RD /
Act Punishment/ MCLT/ COURT]
|Compounding fees
imposed

A COMPANY
Panalty
Punishment HIL
Compounding
B. DIRECTORS
Panally
Punishmsant MIL
Compaounding
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFALULT
Penalty
Punishmsanl HIL

Compounding
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Annexure “D”

Form - AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3)of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’'s length basis:
1 There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the year ended
31 March 2016, which were not at arm's length basis.

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis:
2 There were no material contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the
year ended 31* March 2016, which were at arm's length basis.

For and on behalf of the Board

Nilotpal Deb Ravi Prakash Pincha
Managing Director Director
Place: Kolkata

Date: 30" Day of May, 2016
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Annexure “E”

Disclosure of Particulars under section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rule 8(3)
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, forming part of the Directors' Report for the year
ended 31* March, 2016:

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
i)| Steps taken or impact on energy 1. Automation in condenser tube cleaning system
conservation for air conditioning plant to enhance efficiency.

2. Automation in controls & sensors in different
equipment related to manufacturing processes,
air conditioning systems and power generation
for better monitoring & control, thereby
minimising losses.

3. Lowering down of line losses from steam
pipelines by optimizing the network.

4. Recycling of wasted heat into waters to be used
in boilers to improve efficiency.

5. Automation in compressed air systems to
minimise losses and reduce energy
consumption.

6. Continuous upgradation in machineries to
enhance productivity so that it will consume less

___energy and power.

ii)] Steps taken for utilizing alternate The Company is always endeavoring to maintain
sources of energy the optimum combination of energies and always
looking for the alternate sources.
iii}f Capital investment on energy NIL
conservation equipment
B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
(i) | efforts made towards technology NIL
absorption
(ii) | benefits derived like product
improvement, cost reduction, product NIL
development or import substitution
(iii) | Details in case of imported technology
(imported during the last three years
reckoned from the beginning of the
financial year)
(a) the details of technology imported NIL
(b) the year of import; NIL
(c) whether the technology been fully NIL
absorbed
(d) if not fully absorbed, areaswhere
absorption has not taken place, and NIL
the reasons thereof
(iv) | expenditure incurred on Research and | During the year under review, the Company has nof|
Development incurred any specific and material capital/recurring
expenditure on research and development.

Research and Development is carried out in-house

using the existing manufacturing setup.
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C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:
The Foreign exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year & the Foreign Exchange
outgo in terms of actual outflows:

(Amount in )
Total Foreign Exchange earned and used 2015-16 2014-15
Foreign Exchange earned 474.02 1028.65
Foreign Exchange used 1.78 30.36
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Annexure-F

DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUMERATION AS REQUIRED UNMDER SECTION 187(12) OF THE COMPAMIES ACT, 2013 READ
WITH RULE 5{1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONMNEL) RULES, 2014,

1. The parcentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary during
the financial year 2015 -16, ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employess of
the Company for the financial year 2015-16.

Fatho of the
Ramumnaration of rermuneralion of )
directors/KMPs for the | sach director 1o the % increase | (decreass) in
Nama E e Remunaration in the
financial year 2015-16 meadian Snanck bl
(LA remuneration of the ancial yea
employees
Mr. Milotpal Deb,
Managing Direclos 603,785.00 am [0.35%)
Mr. Pram Chand Khator,
Chiaf Financial Officer 1,076,780.00 538 (3.65%)
Mr. Surdl Kumar Yarma ,
Company Secretary Cum Compliance Officer 372,382.00 1.86 {3.32%)

Percentage increase in the median '
rmnummnili.nn of empl in the Median Remunsration during the year was T 2,00,300.83, The median

financlal year: remunaralion was incroasad by 10,98%.

Number of permanent employees on the 115+
rolls of company :

Explanation on the rolationship babwean

— & Tricriaa: I Hrnansratice arid Tha Profit before Tax for the financial year ended March 31, 2016 decreased

by (158.43%) whereas the increagse in median remuneration was 10.88%.

company parformance:
Comparigon of the remuneration of the key managerial personnel against the performance of the Company:

Hame Remuneration [T) PETT) As 8 % of PBT
Mr. Nifotpal Deb 603,785,00 {56,77.022.00) {10.63%)
Mr. Prem Chand Khator 1,076,790.00 (56,77.922.00) (18.96%)
Mr. Sund Kumar Varma a72.382.00 {56,77.922.00) {6.56%)
Variations in the market capitalization of Particulars 201415 2015-16
the Company, price earnings ratio as at Market Capitalization
the closing date of the current financial q] 734,225.000.00 324.112,500.00
year and previous financial year; PE Ratio 59,61 (65,54

Percentage increase over decrease in the
market quotations of the shares of the Tha Company has not made any public offer in the recent past and

Company In comparison to the rate al accordingly, comparizon of Public Offer Price and the current market price of
which the Company came out with the last | the Company’s shares will not be relevant,
public offer:

Average percentile increase already made
In the salaries of employees other than the
managerial parsonnal in the last financial
year and its comparison with the
percentile increase in the managerial
remuneration and justification thereof and
point out if there are any exceplional
circumstances for increase in the
managerial remuneration:

a) Average increase In remuneralion of employees other than the
Managerial Personnel = [T, 18%)

b) Average increase in remunarafion of Managerial Personnel — 41 88%
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The key parameters for the varable component of remuneration avalad by

The key parameters for any variable the directors are considered by the Board of Directors based on the

component of remuneration availed by the | recommendations of the Momination and Remuneration Commities as per

directors: the Remuneration Policy for Direciors, Key Managerial Personnel and other
Employeas.

The ratio of the remuneration of thae
highest paid director to that of the

amployees who ara not directors but Mot Appicable
recelve remuneration In excess of the
highest paid director during the year:

Thea remunaration is as par the Nomination and Remuneration Policy for tha

Affirmation that the remuneration is as per | Direclors, Key Managsrial Parsonnel and Other Employeses of the Company,

the remuneration policy of the Company: mﬁ:lmma lated pursuant to the provisions of section 178 of the Companies Act,
13

* The calcwlafion 1z made congidenng oy thoss permanent empioyess sszociafed with the Company af the end of financial pear 201 4-
15 & 3015-18 regpectivaly
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As part of the Director's Report or as an addition thereto, a Management Discussion and Analysis Report
forming part of the Annual Report to the Shareholders includes discussion on the following matters within the
limits set by the company's Competitive position:

SOCIO ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT AND INDUSTRY STRUCTURE & MATERIALDEVELOPMENTS

In Union Budget 2016 the Government has once again felt necessary to increase excise duty on tobacco
products. Excise duty on most tobacco products have been raised by 10-15%. However; beedis have been
exempted from it. The continuing discriminatory treatment of cigarettes is a matter of deep concern since bidis
has once again been spared with no increase in tax after 2012-13. Industry body, The Tobacco Institute of India
(TI), in a release said nearly 70% of tobacco consumption in the country is largely produced in the unorganized
sector which does not pay any form of tax either due to exemptions or evasion.

Cigarette taxes on a per kg basis are 47 times higher than the other tobacco products consumed in India. States
are increasing Value Added Tax (VAT) rates arbitrarily taking it to as high as 40% against the consensus rate of
12.5%. An ad-valorem levy like VAT, on a highly taxed product like cigarettes, (Excise >100% of value of
product) is tax on tax resulting in a huge cascading impact. Some states like West Bengal & Assam imposed
VAT on cigarettes at higher specific rates based on length of cigarettes like Excise Duty.

Extremely high and constantly increasing tax rates on Cigarettes provide a profitable opportunity for tax evasion
thereby encouraging growth in illegal trade. This also impacted cigarettes manufacturing companies'
production capacity and they are bound to lower down the same due to decline in consumption level.

The discriminatory taxation policy, increased harsh pictorial warning and availability of cheaper non duty paid
cigarettes, impacting your company's performance. Your company's main focus is the affordable segment of 64
mm but the continuous excise & vat hike is making your company's foothold weak in the segment. Above all
there is also a huge competition with the other manufacturers.

However, in the above said adverse scenarios, your company is dedicated to its customers and taking all the
available efforts to regain its lost place in the industry by improving its portfolio and technologies.

STRENGTHS & OPPORTUNITIES

India is the world's 2nd largest producer of tobacco with an estimated annual production of 800 million kgs and
the 3rd largest producer of Flue-Cured Virginia (FCV) tobacco — a variety used in Cigarettes, with an annual
production of around 300 million kgs. India is amongst the top tobacco exporters in the world reflecting the
tremendous success that Indian tobacco companies achieved. The growth in exports has been remarkable in
the recent years. The global leaf tobacco trade is valued at US$ 12 billion per annum; India's share of this trade
is just around 7% currently. India is poised to increase its share of leaf tobacco trade, particularly as Indias
tobacco production share in the world is more than 12%.

Tobacco & Tobacco Products are a large contributor to the National exchequer by way of Central Excise and
State taxes (VAT, Entry Tax etc). The combined tax revenue collected annually from tobacco products is more
than Rs. 29,000 crores annually.

Cigarettes which bear the brunt of taxation in India are the major revenue contributor from the Tobacco sector.
Despite just 11% share of tobacco consumption, legal cigarettes contribute 85% of tax revenue.

Tobacco provides direct and indirect employment to more than 45.7 million people, around 70% of whom are in
the agricultural sector. Tobacco is a highly remunerative crop providing economic/social benefits to farmers in
the tobacco growing regions.

This shows that India has significant opportunity for cigarette industry to extend and consolidate its position in
intentional market due to some recent trend like withdrawal/reduction of agricultural subsidy and escalating
costing in the traditional cigarette exporting countries.
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It is your Company's continuous endeavor to maintain the taste and preferences of its customers while
upgrading and developing new brands. Your company will launch new brands in the 64 mm, 69 mm and 84 mm
sagments in the near-term in new designs across various places in India.

THREATS, RISKS AND CONCERNS

Extreme Regulation
Despite India being the 2nd largest tobacco producer and a major exporter, tobacco control measures in India
have always been equally or more stringent than in many developed countries.

Taxation

As a percentage of per capita GDP, Cigarette taxes (Excise Duty & State Taxes) in India, of the most popular
price category, are amongst the highest in the world. Consequently, cigarette prices in India, relative to per
capita GDP, are also amongst the highestin the world.

Pictorial/Graphic Warning

The Union Ministry of Health & Family Welfare has mandated an increasa in the size of pictorial warnings from
the current 40% on front of the packs to B5% on both sides with effect from 1st April 2016. Such an extreme
position on wamings overlooking the huge livelihood dependency and enormous socio-economic benefits of
Tobacco Industry in India.

Iifegal Cigarette Trade & Compeatition
Extremely high tax rates and constantly increasing tax rates on Cigareties provide a opportunity for tax evasion

by illegal trade in both international smuggled and domestic tax evaded cigarettes which are being sold at lower
price than tax paid cigarettes giving a stiff competition to industry.

Moreover, in the current market situation there is a stiff competition from big players with regard to marketing of
new brands.

SEGMENT WISE/PRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE

Your Company considers "Manufacturing of Cigaretie and Smoking Mixiure” as the primary business sagment.
Therafora segmant wisae / product wise parformance reporting is not applicable to your company.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

NTC has a robust system of internal financial control, commensurate with the size and complexity of its
business operations. The system which comprised of policy, procedure and intemal audit processes. It
safeguarding its assets, ensuring transactions are in accordance with the policies, and are duly authorised to
identify possible risk areas and to prevent possibilities of frauds or other irregularities.

The Company has an external and independent firm of Internal Auditors that scrutinizes the financials and other
operations of the Company. Intermal Auditors directly report to the Audit Committes. The Audit committes review
the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control system of the Company and keeps the Board of Directors
informed of its major obsarvations from time to time. Based on the findings of Internal Auditors, process owners
undertake comective actions in their respective areas. During the year and at the year-end,no reportable
material weakness or significant deficiency was observed in the design or operations. Your company is also 1SO
89001:2008 certified for its internal audit function.

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES /INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS FRONT

At NTC, we follow a culture that provides a platform for continuous learning and development to meet the
challenges posed by ever-changing markel realities. Employees are your Company's most valuable assets and
the Management recognizes them as the prime machinery of the organization, They are always given the first
pricrity and are provided with all the basic requiremenis and safety measures for good health and well-being.
The Management, in order to create enduring value, has fostered a culture of feeling of being togetherness and
attachment amongst ntc employees through participative management practices, open interaction and mutual
respect.
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Your Company's human resource management systems and processes aim to enhance organizational
capability and vitality to seize emerging market opportunities. The strategy of the organization and its ongoing
emphasis on developing and nurturing distributed leadership has ensured that each of your Company's
business is managed by a team of competent, passionate and inspiring leaders.

Your Company's belief in the mutuality of interests of key stakeholders binds all employees to a shared vision
and purpose. The Company continued to maintain healthy industrial relations and did not report any sort of
strike or lockout that would have impacted Company's operations.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the industrial expectations are “forward
looking statements” within the meaning of applicable securities law and regulations. Actual results could differ
materially from those expressed or implied, important factors that could make difference to the Company's
operations include raw material availability and prices, cyclical demand and pricing in the Company's principal
markets, changes in the government regulations, tax regimes, economic developments in India and other
incidental factors.

For and on behalf of the Board

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30.05.2016
Nilotpal Deb
Managing Director
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REPORT ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Corporate Governance standards demonstrate inalienable rights vested with various
stakeholders and strong commitment to values, ethics and business conduct. At NTC,
Corporate Governance is defined as a systematic process by which companies are directed
and controlled keeping in mind the long-term interests of all their stakeholders. Achievement
of excellence in good Corporate Governance practices requires continuous efforts and focus
on its resources, strengths and strategies towards ensuring fairness and transparency in all
its dealings with its stakeholders including society at large. Corporate Governance has indeed
assumed greater significance as the world has moved towards closer integration and free
trade.

1. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company firmly believes that Corporate Governance is about commitment to values and ethical
business conduct. Your Company has a strong legacy of fair, transparent and ethical governance
practices and endeavours to improve upon these aspects on an ongoing basis and adopts innovative
approaches. The Board of Directors ("The Board”) of your Company is responsible for and committed to
sound principles of Corporate Governance in the Company. It has been enduring in its philosophy to
enhance stakeholders' value and customers' satisfaction by consistently endeavouring to follow the best
Corporate Governance practices. The Board plays a critical role in overseeing how the management
serves the short and long-term interests of shareholders and other stakeholders. This belief is reflected in
our governance practices, under which we strive to maintain an effective, informed and independent
Board. The Board updates its policies and guidelines from time to time to address the changing need of
the environment in which it operates and to effectively achieve the stated objective of the Company.

2 BOARD OF DIRECTORS
In terms of the Corporate Governance policy, all statutory and other significant and material information
are placed before the Board to enable it to discharge its responsibility of strategic supervision of the
Company as trustees to the shareholders. The Board of Directors ('the Board') is entrusted with the
ultimate responsibility of the management, general affairs, direction and performance of the Company
and has been vested with the requisite powers, authorities and duties.

COMPOSITION

The composition of the Board of Directors of the Company is in conformity with the Code of Corporate
Governance as per Regulation 17 SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulation,
2015 ("Listing Regulation”). of Listing Regulations. The Company has an optimum combination of
Executive and Non-Executive Directors.

As on 31st March, 2016, your Company's Board has a strength of 5 (Five) Directors comprising 1 (one)
Executive and 4 (Four) Non-Executive Directors, latter including 3 (Three) Independent Directors. The
Company has One Woman Director in its Board and as such the company has complied with the
provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("The Act”) and Part A of Schedule Il of Listing
Regulation read with regulation 17(7) of the said regulations with regard to information being placed
before the Board.

At the time of appointment, every Independent Director signs a Declaration to confirm that they fulfil all
the conditions for being an Independent Director as laid down under the law. The Board believes that the
currentsize is appropriate, based on the Company's present circumstances.
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Composition and Directorship(s) / Committee Membership(s)/Chairmanship(s) as on 31st March, 2016:

Name of the | Designation Category No. of Directorship(s) and Committea(s)
Director Membership(s)/ Chairmanship(s) (excluding the
Company)
Other Committee Committee
Directorship(s)* | Membership*™ | Chairmanship**
; Managing Executive
Mr. Nilotpal Deb Director Diraciar , . L
Mon-
Mr. Ravi Executive &
Prakash Pincha HFEChr Indepandent 4 2 1
Director
Mon-
Mr. Dilip Additional Executive & i} i i}
Chakraborty Director Independeant
Director
Mon=
Mr. Gaurav Additional Executive & ) i )
Somani Director Independent
Directar
Ms. Vembi
: Additional Mon-Executive
enshnamuithy | Director Director ] i )
5]

*Exciudes Direciorships in privale fmited, forelgn compeanies and govermmmed Companias
"Dnly membershipsfchalrmanships of the Audd Committes and Stakeholder Relationship Commilfee i vanous pubic Bmifed
COMpAMEs, considerad.

MNotes:

1. None of the Directors hold Directorships in more than 20 companies including 10 public limited
companies and private companies which are either subsidiary or holding company of a public company
pursuant to Section 165 of the Companies Act, 2013.

2. None of the Directors hold Membership and/or Chairmanship of any Commitiee exceeding 10
Companies andior 5 Companies respactively as per Regulation 26(1) of the Listing Regulations.

3. The Direclorship/Committee membership is based on the Disclosures recaived from the Directors as on
31.03.2016.

Ms. Vembi Krishnamurthy Radha, retire by rotation and being eligible, seek re-appointment at the ensuing 25"
Annual General Meeting (AGM). A brief resume of the directors reliring by rotation seeking re-appointment,
along with the nature of their expeartise and the details of other directorships and the committea positions held by
them and their shareholdings have been disclosed to the shareholders through notes/Explanatory Statement
annexed to the Notice for the ensuing AGM.

Mo director has any inter-se relation to other Diractor.

BOARD MEETINGS:

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on Company’s business policy and strategy apart
from other Board business. The Board/Committee meetings are pre-scheduled and a tentative date of Board
and Commitiee meetings is circulated to the Directors well in advance to facilitate them to plan their schedules
and to ansure meaningful participation in the meeatings. The Company Secratary, draft the agenda for sach
meating, along with the agenda notas and explanatory statements, which, are distributed well in advance to the
directors, in accordance with para 1.3.7of the Secretarial Standard-1. Every Board member is free to suggest
iterns for inclusion on the agenda. The Board meets at least once in a quarter to review the quarterly results and
other agendas.

During the financial year ended 31° March, 2016, six (8) meetings of the Board were held, i.e., on 30/05/2015,
14/08/2015, 19/09/2015, 08M10/2015, 141172015, and 13/02/2016. The maximum Interval between any two
meatings was wall within the maximum allowed gap of four months.
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Attendance of Directors at Board Meetings and Annual General Meeting

kot Mo. of Board Meetings Athﬁ'ﬂanneatlasthﬂm
Held during Allended (4" September, 2015)
directorship
Mr. Nilotpal Deb 6 6 Yas
Mr. Ravi Prakash Pincha o] B Yes
Mr. Dilip Chakraborty 6 6 Mo
Mr, Gaurav Somani 6 B Yes
Mz Vembi Krishnamurthy Radha G & Yes

MEETING OF INDEFPENDENT DIRECTOR

Pursuant to Schedule |V of the Companies Act and the Rules made thereunder, a separate meeting of
Independent Directors was held on 31" March, 2016. The meeting was attended by Mr. Gaurav Somani; Mr.
Ravi Prakash Fincha; Mr. Dilip Chakraborty. Mr. Ravi Prakash Fincha was elected as the Lead Indepandent
Director. In the meeting, the Directors reviewed the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board
as a whole and further assessed the quality, quantity and the timeliness of flow of information between the
Management and the Board. The Directors discussed the evaluation form for the Evaluation of Directors, They
also reviewad tha parformance of the Chairperson of the Company, taking in to account the views of executive &
non-executive directors.

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME

The Independent Directors have been familiarized with the nature of operations of the Company & the industry
in which its operates, business model of the company. The details of familiarasation programme have been
posted in the web site of the company and can be accessed at.

1. COMMITTEES OF THEBOARD

The Board Committeas play a crucial role in the governance structure of the Company and have baen
constituted to deal with specific areas/activities which concern the Company and nead a closer review, The
Board Committees are set up under the formal approval of the Board, to carmy out clearly defined roles. The
Board supervises the execution of its responsibilities by the Committee and is responsible for their action.
The Minutes of the meetings of all the Committees are placed before the Board for review.

The Board had established the following Committees.
A. AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee of the Company acts as a link between the Management, the Statutory and
Internal Auditors and the Board of Directors. The Audit Committee, inter alia, provides reassurance to
the Board on the existence of an effective internal control environment that ensuras:
« afficlency and effectivanaess of operations;
safeguarding of assets and adequacy of provisions for all liabilities;
reliability of financial and other management information and adequacy of disclosures;
compliance with all relevant statutes.

COMPOSITION OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
The constitution of the Committee meets the requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Regulation 18 of Listing Regulations. The Audit Committee comprises of:

Sl. No. | Name Category Designation
1 Mr. Gaurav Somani Non-Executive Independent | Chairman
2 Mr. Dilip Chakraborty Mon-Execulive Independent | Member
3 Mr. Ravi Prakash Pincha Non-Executive Independent | Member

All the members of the Commiltee are financially literate and the Chairman of the Committea has accounting
and financial management expertise. The Chief Financial Officer attends the meeting of the Audit Committee as
an invitee and the Company Secretary is the Secretary to the Committea.
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TERMS OF REFERENCE

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as defined under the relevant provisions of Section 177 of the
Actand as specified in Part C of Schedule |l of the Listing Regulations . The Audit Committee is empowered,
pursuant to its terms of reference, inter alia, to:

e investigate any activity within its terms of reference and to seek any information it requires from any
employee;

e obtain legal or other independent professional advice and to secure the attendance of outsiders with
relevant experience and expertise, when considered necessary.

® have full access to information contained in the records ofthe Company
The role of the Audit Committee includes the following:

i. Overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to
ensure that the financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible;

ii. Recommending the appointment/re-appointment and removal of statutory auditors, internal auditors
and fixation of their remuneration;

iii. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by them;

iv. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon before
submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference to:

e Matters required to be included in the Directors' Responsibility Statement, which is to be
included in the Board's Report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

® Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.

Major accounting entries involving estimates based on exercise of judgment by the

management.

Qualifications in the draft audit report.

Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit.

Compliance with listing and legal requirements concerning financial statements.

e Disclosure of any related party transactions.

v. Reviewing with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board for
approval;

vi. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue
(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other
than those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring
agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate
recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter;

vii. Review and monitor the auditor's independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process

viii. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties

ix. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments

X. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever itis necessary

xi. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems

Xii. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the
internal control systems.

xiii. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage
and frequency of internal audit;

xiv. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant finding and follow-up thereon;

xv. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is
suspected fraud or irregularity of failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the
matter to the Board;

xvi Discussion with the statutory auditors, before the audit commences on the nature and scope of
audit, as well as post-audit discussions, to ascertain any areas of concern and review the comments
contained in their draft report;

xvii To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in payment to the depositors, debenture holders,
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividend) and creditors;
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aviii. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism;

xix. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the Whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the
finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualification, experence and
background, etc. Of the candidate;

xx. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee and
such other matters as may be required by the Board.

xxi. Reviewing other areas that may be brought under the purview of role of Audit Committes as specified in
Listing Regulations and the Companies Act, as and when ameanded.

The audit committea shall mandatorily review the following information :

1) management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operation;

2) statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the audit committee), submitted by
management;

3) management letter /letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;
4) intemnal audit reports relating to internal control weaknessas; and
5) the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor shall be subject to
review by the audit committes;
6) statement of deviations;
a) quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable, submitted to
stock exchange(s) in terms of Reguiation 32(1).
b) annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer
document/prospectus/notice in terms of Regulation 32(7).

DETAILS OF ALUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS
The Audit Committee met four times during the finencial year ended 31° March, 2016 on 30/052015, 14/08/2015,
14112015 and 13022016,

DETAILS OF MEMBERS AND THEIR ATTENDANCE AT THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS:

Sl. No. Name Pasition o, of Committss Meetings
1 Mr. Gaurav Somani Chairman 4 4
2 Mr. Dilip Chakraborty # Member 3 3
3 Mr. Ravi Prakash Pincha *® Member 4 4
4 Ms. Vembi Krishnamurthy Radha . Member 1 1
Note:

@ ceazed o be member from 30,05 2015 £ appointed as member wel 14082075
*  gppoinfed a5 mambar on we L3005 2015 # ceased o be Commitfes Members we f 14082015

B. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The primary function of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is Io assist the Board of Directors in
fuifiliing its govemance and supervisory responsibilities relating to human resource management and
compensation. The Committee reviews and where reguired, approves the human resource policies,
remuneration proposals, succession planning, evaluation of performances and development plans of Key
Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and other employees of the Company. It also provides support in
handling the nomination and remuneration proposals for the Board members including Independent Direclors

The Committee's constitution and terms of reference are in compliance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations.

COMPOSITION OF THE NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee comprises of three Non-Executive Directors and the Chairman of
the Momination & Remuneration Committee is Independent Director. The Committee determines the
remuneration paid/payable to the Managing Director and other Executive Directors subject to the approval of
the members.

During the financial year ended 31" March, 2016, one meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held on.4”
February, 2016.
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Details of members and their altendance at the maetlnga are as follows:

ok Name Position ""I:Iz il n";
1 Mr. Gaurav Somani ® Chairman 1 1
2 Mr. Ravi Prakash Pincha Member 1 1
3 Ms. Vembi Krishnamurthy Radha® Member 1 1

& appointed as Chalman wee f 20.05. 2015 it ceazed o be Commiftes Members we f 30,05 2015

TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE COMMITTEE, INTER ALIA, INCLUDES THE FOLLOWING:
®* To |dentify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senlor
management in accordance with the crteria laid down and to recommend to the Board their
appointment and/ or removal.
® Toformulate criteria for and carry out evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board;
® To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
Director, and recommend to thea Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the Directors, key
managerial personnel and other employees
® Todevisea policy on Board diversity
® Tocarry out any other function as [s mandated by the Board from time to time and / or enforced by any
statutory notification, amendment or modification, as may be applicable

REMUNERATION POLICY

Your Company has adopted a Nomination and Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel
and other Employees; regulated by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board. The Policy is
also available on the website of the Company www.ntcind.com in the investor relation section under ‘Secretarial
Documents',

Details of Remuneration of the Directors for the financial year ended 31" March, 2016 Figures in (T}
Perquisites | Performance
Director ““‘m"““""" andother | bonus/ | Smind Total
Benefits Commission
Mr. Nilotpal Deb 4,81,704/- 1.22,081/- - - 6,03,785/-

Mo remuneration (including sitting fea) has been paid to the Non-Execufive Directors in the financial year 2015-
16. The Non-Executive Directors do not hold any shares and/or convertible instruments in the Company and
also they do not have any pecuniary relationship or transaction with the Company except Mr. Ravi Prakash
Pincha, who holds 5600 shares in the Company. The Company has not granted any stock options to its
Directors.

The appointment of the Executive Directors is govemned by resolutions passed by the Board and the
Shareholders of the Company, which cover the terms and conditions of such appointment, read with the service
rules of the Company.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF DIRECTORS

In compliance with the provisions of the Listing regulations 2015, the Nomination and Remuneration committee
on the basis of the Board Evaluation policy and framework adopted by the Board camries out the evaluation
process of the Independent Directors. The Committea formulates evaluation criteria for the Indepandent
Directors which is broadly based on personal Integrity, ethical standards, confidentiality, knowledge of the
institution's key activities; deliberations or committea work; understands governance, etc

C. STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Committes was re-named by the Board of Directors in their meating held on 28/05/2014 to align with the
requirements of Section 178 of the Companias Act, 2013.
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The Committee’s conslitution and terms of reference are in compliance with the provisions of the Acl and
Regulation 20 and Part D of Schedule || of the Listing Regulations.

COMPOSITION OF STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Stakeholder Relationship Commiltee comprises of Mr. Ravi Prakash Pincha, Mr. Gaurav Somani and Ms.
Vembi Krishnamurthy Radha. Mr.Ravi Prakash Pincha, Non Executive-Independent Director acls as a
Chairman of the Committea. The Company Secretary of the Company is the Secratary of the Committee.

TERMS OF REFERENCE

The Stakeholder Relationship Committee of the Company oversees the redressal of grievances of Security
holders of the Company including complaints related to transfer of shares, non-receipt of annual report and
non-receipt of declared dividends, and approves the sub-division, transfer / transmission of shares, issue of
duplicate share certificates in lieu of those lost or destroyed, etc.

The Committee has met 8 times on 30/05/2015, 04/06/2015, 07/07/2015, 19/08/2015, 15/08/2015, 27/08/2015,
13/02/2016, and 01/03/2016 during the period from 01/04/2015 to 31/03/2016.

Details of members and their attendance at the meetings are as follows:

5. No. of Committee Meetings
Name Position

No. Held Attended
1 Mr. Ravi Prakash Pincha Chairman B a8
2 Mr. Dilip Chakraborty® Member 1 1
3 Mr. Gaurav Somani Member B a8
4 Ms. Viambi Krishnamurthy Radha ¥ Membar T 7

' peased o beamemberw.ef37.06,2015 B appointedio be Comiiies Members wee f 31,05 2075

2. COMPANY SECRETARY & COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Sunil Kumar Varma, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer of the Company. The
shareholders may send their complaints at investors{@ntcind.com.

3 Details of shareholders’ complaints

{a) Number of shareholders' complaints received during the year ; 0{Zero)
{b) Number of shareholders' complaints resolved during the year ; 0(Zero)
({c) Number of complaints not solved to the satisfaction of shareholders : 0 (Zero)
{d) Number of complaints pending : 0 (£era)

4. SUBSIDIARY COMPANY:

The Company has formulated a Policy on Material Subsidiary and uploaded on the website of the
Company. http:/fwww.ntcind.comdpdffSTLD/ntc % 20Policy%20on%20Matedal%205ubsidiary. pdf.

As on 31.03.2018, no other subsidiary other than NCIL Real Estate Private Limited qualifies to ba a
material subsidiary of ntc industries limited, The Company has complied with the corporate governance
requirements with respect to its subsidiaries as required under Regulation 24 of the Listing Regulations.

5. CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company is consistently endeavouring to conduct its business in accordance with the highest
standards of business ethics and complying with applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Tha Company beliaves that a good corporate governance structura would not only ancourage valua
creation but also provide accountability and control systems commensurate with the risks involved.
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The Board of Directors have adopted the Code of Conduct for the Directors and Senior Management
(hereinafter referred to as “the Code") which has been posted on the Company's website
whwnw, nifcind.com.

The Code has been circulated to all the members of the Board and Senior Management and the
compliance of the same has bean affirmed by them. A declaration signed by the Managing Director is

given below.

*| hereby confirm that the Company has obtained, from all the members of the Board and Senior
Management, affirmation that they have complied with the Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior

Management in respect of financial vear 2015-16."

6. DETAILS OF GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Nilotpal Deb
Managing Director

{a) The date, iime and venue of the last 3 Annual General Meelings are as under:-

Financial No. of Special
Yoar Maating Date Timea Location Resolution, if
endod any, passod
spiiae | 2| @ ;ﬁ:ﬁ.“w 11,30 | The Aryans School, 149 B.T, Road, )
oorzta | 2" | e sFer:;?er 940 | The Aryans School, 149 B T, Road, G
AGM 2014 ) a.m Kolkata- 700058
S313 za™ Thursday, 12,30 [ The Aryans School, 140 B.T. Road, !
AGM | 8" August, 2013 | pm Kolkata- 700058

* Bpocial Resolution for increase v borrowing fmif @' TR0 TG of the Companies Act, 2013

(a) No extra-ordinary general meeting of the shareholders was held during the yvear.

{b) During the year under review, no special resolutions were passed by the Shareholders of the
Company through Postal Ballot.

{ € )None of the business proposed to be transacted at the ensuing Annual General Meeting requires
passing a resolution through postal ballot.

[ DISCLOSURES

a) Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions: All contracts with our affiliates
entered into during the said period have no potential conflict of interests of the Company at large and
are being carried out at an arm’s length at fair market value. Thera are no matarially significant

related party transactions i.e. any transaction of material nature, with its prom

oters, directors or the

management or relatives, etc. that may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at
large, other than in the normal course of business. The transactions with related parties have been
disclosaed in Nole No. 2.29 of Noles to the Standalone Financial Statements forming part of the

accounts for the year ended 31" March, 2016.
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b)

c)

d)

a)

Statutory Compliances: The Company regularly complies with the requirements of the regulatory
authorities on the matters relating to the capital market and no penalties / restrictions have been
imposad on the Company by the Siock Exchanges or SEBI or any other statutory authority, during
the last three years.

Whistle Blower policy: The Company has formulated and published a Whistle Blower Policy to
provide Vigil Mechanism for employees including directors of the Company to report genuine
concerns. The provisions of this policy are in line with the provisions of the Section 177(9) of the Act
and the Listing Regulations with stock exchanges.
(URL:http:/iwww.ntcind.com/pdfiSTLD/ntc%20Vigilance%20Mechanism. pdf).

Mone of the officials/personnel of the Company has been denied access to the Audit Commitiee.
The Ombudsman has not received any complaint during the financial year ended 31st March, 2015.

Disclosure of Accounting Treatment

In preparation of Financial Statements, the Company has followed the Accounting Standards issued
by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, The significant Accounting Standards have been
set outin the notes to Accounts of the Audited Accounts.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report (MDA)
MDA forms part of the Annual Report and the same is attached separately in this Annual Report.

Compliance of Mandatory Requirements and Adoption of Non-mandatory requirements of
SEBI (Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirement) Regulation, 2015.

The Company duly complied with all the mandatory requirements of the SEBI (Listing Obligations &
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with the Stock Exchanges.

The Company has complied with the discretionary requirements as specified in part E of Schedule Il
of SEBI (Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirement) Regulation, 2015 as far as they are
applicable to the Company.

The Company is no dealing in commaodity and hence disclosure relating to commaodity price risks
and commaodity hedging activities are not applicable.

. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The Company interacts with the Shareholders through the multiple channels of communication such

as publication of results, Annual Report and the Company's wabsite, The Company also informs the

Stock Exchange in a prompt manner, all price sensitive and all other matters which in its opinion, ara

matarial and relevant for the Shareholders.

a. The quarterly un-audited financial results and annual audited financial results are published in
all editions of Business Standard and/or The Financial Express in English, and Kalantar, Dainik
Lipi, Duranta Barta andlor Arthik Lipiin Bengali.

b. The quarterly financial results and annual audited financial results of the Company are sent to
The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited and BSE Limited.

¢. The Company's inancial results are also displayed on its website, www.nicind.com,

d. Incompliance of listing obligations requiremeants your company has designated an e-mail id as
investors@ntcind.com especially for its investors.

e, No presentation was made to the institutional investors or o the analysts during the year under
raview,

f. The Company's website does not display any official news releases

g. Annual Report, containing infer alia, Director's Report, Auditors’ Report, Audited Annual

Accounts and other important information were circulated to members and others entitled
thereto.
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9. COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE OF THE AUDITORS
The statutory auditors have certified that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated in Regulation 17, Schedule V of the Listing Regulations and the same is
annexed.

10. RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL

As per SEBI (Depositories & Participants) Regulation, 2003, certificate of Reconciliation of Share Capital
Audit issued by a Practicing Company Secretary, confirming that the total issued capital of the Company
is in agreement with the total number of shares in physical form and the total number of dematerialised
shares held with NSDL and CDSL, is placed before the Board on a quarterly basis and also submitted to
the stock exchanges.

11. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS'INFORMATION
Details of Annual General Meeting for F. Y. 2015-16

Date 1| Saturday, 3 rd September, 2016
Venue 1| The Aryans School, 149 B.T. Road, Kolkata - 700058
Time 1| 10.00 a.m.

From Monday, 29™ August, 2016 to Saturday 3™ September, 2016 (both days

Book closure date inclusive)

Financial Calendar
Financial year: 1% April, 2015 to 31" March, 2016

For the year ended 31* March, 2016, results were adopted on:
e  13"August, 2015: First quarter (Un-audited)

e 14" November, 2015: Half yearly (Un-audited)

e 13"February, 2016: Third quarter (Un-audited)

e 29" May, 2016: Annual (Audited)

Forthe year ending 31" March, 2017, the results are likely to be adopted:
e onorbefore 14" August, 2016 : First quarter (Un-audited)

e onorbefore 14" November, 2016: Half yearly (Un-audited)

e onorbefore 14" February, 2017: Third quarter (Un-audited)

e onorbefore 30" May, 2017: Annual (Audited)

Listing on Stock Exchanges

The shares of the Company are listed on the following Stock Exchanges, namely

Name of the Stock Exchange Address of the Stock Exchange Stock Code
The Calcutta Stock Exchange 7, Lyons Range, Kolkata — 700 001 28044
Limited Website: www.cse-india.com
i Phiroz Jeejabhoy Towers , Dalal Street,
aslLiman Mumbai — 400 001,Website: www.bseindia.com RE20753
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The listing fees for the financial year 2016-1 7 have been paid to the above Stock Exchanges.

Depositories
Mame of the Depository Addrass of the Depository Website
Mational Securlies Depository Ltd. Trade World, Kamala Mills Compound, .
Lower Parel, Mumbal - 400 013 il
Central Depository Services (India) P J Towers, 17" Floor, Dalal Street, Fort, 3
Limited Mumnbai — 400 001 www. cdslindia.com

The International Securities |dentification Number (ISIN) allotied to Company's securities under the
Depository system s INES20C01017,

Market price data
The monthly high and low share price data at the BSE Limited for the financial year 2015-16:

Month Share Price (High)| Share Prics (Low) HEFI-IEI;I!T“ “'fm
Apr-15 72.05 45.75 22930.31 22197 51
May-15 64.95 38.10 25375.63 22277.04
Jun-15 71.95 56.50 25725.12 24270.20
Juk15 62.90 4580 26300.17 24892.00
Aug-15 52.25 34.20 26674.38 25232.82
Sep-15 4165 30.00 27354.99 26220.49
Oct-15 55.30 34.10 27884.32 25810.77
Nov-15 49,70 34.05 28822.37 27739.56
Dec-15 53.90 35.00 28800.64 26469.42
Jan-18 57.00 36.00 2984416 26776,12
Feb-16 46.90 30.00 2956032 2804448
Mar-16 39,95 28.60 30024.74 2724845

Performance of Company's Scripts on BSE vs BSE Sensex
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Registrar & Share Transfer Agents

bz Miche Technologies Private Limited

D-511, Bagres Market, 71, B.R.B. Basu Road, 5" Floor, Kolkata — 700 001
Phone Mo, 033-2234-3576, 2235-7270, 2235-72T1

Fax No, 033-2215-6823, e-mail: nichetechpiinichetechpl.com

Contact Person — Mr. 5. Abbas [5r. Manager— Systems)

SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM

The RTA performs all share transfer activities, which is a Category-l Registrar and Share Transfer Agent.
Therefore, all correspondences should be made o the address mentioned above. Shareholders holding shares
inthe electronic form should address their correspondence to their respective depository participants.

Pursuant to the provisions of regulation 40{9) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, a certificate on a half-yearly
basis confirming the compliance of share transfer formalities, quarterly cerificate for timely dematerialization of
the shares as per SEB| (Depositories & Parlicipants) Regulation, 1996 are sent to the Exchanges by the
Registrar & Transfer Agent.

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING
Distribution of shareholding by size as on 31" March, 2016

Range of Shares Number of Shareholders | % of Shareholders | No. of Shares | % of Shares
Up to 500 4841 87.92 6,39,560 5.94
501 = 1000 H40 6.18 2,078,242 2,59
1001 — 5000 236 428 5,390,018 5.01
S001 = 10000 35 .64 265,126 247
10001 = 50000 38 0.69 T.39.279 G.68
50001 — 100000 4 0.07 2,68,364 2.50
100001 and above 12 0.22 B0.20.411 T74.61

1,07,50,000 100.00

Category Number of Shares % to Total
Promoters and Promoter Group 7,253,199 67.47
Banks, Financial Institutions etc. 1,900 0.02
Corporate Bodies 842 518 B.7T
Indian Public 2,373,070 2208
MRls/ OCBs 83,045 0.87
Clearing Members 86,268 0.80
Total 10,750,000 100.0000
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Distribution of share holding by category as on 31st March, 2016
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Pramater Growp Institutions etc
List of Top Ten Shareholders as on 31" March, 2016
No. of % of
51. No. Mame of the Shareholder Shares held Shareholding
1 Vinod Dugar 2114423 19.66
2 Sheetal Dugar 1933424 17.99
3 Khatod Investments & Finance Company Limited 921225 B.57
i Pyramid Sales Private Limited 716122 6.66
o Sunder Lal Dugar 687800 6.40
5] Loka Properties Private Limited arT100 3.51
7 Ankur Construclions Private Limited 375000 3.49
a Maheswari Plaza Resorts Limited 336281 213
a9 Uttimate Infrabuild Private Limibed 141325 1.32
10 Morth City Commodities Private Limited 126817 1.18
" includes $6400 shares as Trusiee of Rekiva Beanefil Trust
** Inpludes 6F 200 shares held as Karta of Mot Lai Dugar fHLIF)
Details of shares held by Directors as on 31" March, 2016
Name of Director No. of Equity Shares % of Total holding
Mr. Nilotpal Deb Mil Mil
Mr. Ravi Prakash Pincha 5,600 0.052
Mr. Dillp Chakraborty Mil Mil
Mr Gaurav Somani Mil Ml
Total 3,600 0.052
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Dematerialisation of shares and liquidity

Shares held in dematerialised and physical form as on 31* March, 2016

0, 3.17%
Status of No. of e /
. .. Total
Dematerialisation Shares
Shares
53.23% 43.59%
Shares held in NSDL 4686237 | 43.59% \ [ ‘/
Shares held in CDSL 5722458 | 53.23%
. . Demat Status as on
Shares held in physical form 341305 3.17% 31.03.2016

Transfer of Unclaimed amounts to Investor Education and Protection Fund

Pursuant to section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, dividends that are unpaid/unclaimed for a period of seven
years from the date they became due for payment are required to be transferred by the Company to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) administered by the Central Government.

During the year under review, Unclaimed Dividend for the Financial Year 2007-08 amounting to Rs.1,67,590.50
was transferred into Investors Education & Protection Fund on December 16, 2015 in compliance with section
124 of the Companies Act, 2013. The particulars of unpaid dividend for the previous seven years are uploaded
on the Company's website and filed with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

Outstanding GDR's/ADR's/Warrants or any Convertible Instruments

The Company has notissued any GDR's/ADR's/Warrants/Stock Options or any other Convertible Instruments.

Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities

The Company is not dealing in commodity and hence disclosure relating to commodity price risks and
commodity hedging activities are not applicable.

Plant Location and address for correspondence:

ntc industries limited
149, B. T. Road, Kamarhati
Kolkata—700058
Website: www.ntcind.com
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CERTIFICATE OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,
The Members,
ntc industries limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by ntc industries limited (‘the
Company'), for the year ended 31st March 2016, as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement ('Listing
Agreement') of the Company with the stock exchanges for the period 1st April 2015 to 30" November 2015 and
as per the relevant provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of [ndia (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ('Listing Regulations') as referred to in Regulation 15(2) of the Listing
Regulations for the period 1st December 2015 to 31st March 2016

The Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our
examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the
compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the
financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the
Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above—mentioned
Listing Agreement/Listing Regulations as applicable.

On the basis of records maintained by the Company, we state that as on 31* March, 2016, there were no
investor grievances remaining pending for a period exceeding ons month against the company.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company, nor the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For

S. M. DAGA & CO.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 303119E

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30" May, 2016

Deepak Kumar Daga
Partner
Membership No. 059205

ntc industries limited ANNUAL REPORT _ 2015-18_PAGE #49



CEO / CFO CERTIFICATION

To,
The Board of Directors,
ntc industries limited

We, Nilotpal deb, Managing Director appointed in terms of the Companies Act, 2013 and Prem Chand Khator,
Chief Financial Officer, hereby certify to the Board that:

a) We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31* March,
2016 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

i. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain statements that might be misleading;

ii. these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in
compliance with the existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during
the year ended 31® March, 2016 which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company's Code of
Conduct.

c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining intarnal controls for financial reporting and
that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to
financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the
design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken
or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

d) We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee that:

i. there have been no significantchangesin internal control overfinancial reporting during the
year;

ii. therehave been no significantchangesin accounting policies during the period and

iii. there have been no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the
involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the
Company's internal control system over financial reporting.

For ntc industries limited

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30" May, 2016

Nilotpal Deb Prem Chand Khator
Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ON STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TO THEMEMBERS OF NTC INDUSTRIES LIMITED

¥We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NTC INDUSTRIES LIMITED, which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016, the Statement of Profit & Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year
ended on that date, and also a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies: making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were oparating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completenass of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatemant,
whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit, We have taken into
account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be
included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under,

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of tha
Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit invalves parforming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the
financial statements. Tha procedures selected depand on the auditor's judgment, including the assessmeant of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the
financial staternents that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an
adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and the operating effectivenass of such
controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

OPINION

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of tha
Company as at 31st March, 2016, and its Loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.
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EMPHASIS OF MATTER

We draw attention to the following matter in the Notes to the following financial statements:

a) Note 2.31 to the financial statements, which describe the uncertainly related to the outcome of pending
dispute in the matter of provision of interest unsecured loan.

b) Naote 2. .32 to the financial statements which describe the uncerainty related fo the oulcome of
pending dispute in the matter of Excise duty with Central Excise Department,

c) Naote 2.33 to the financial stafements which describe the uncertainty related to the outcome of pending
dispute with West Bengal Government in the maifter of Entry Tax.

d] Nate 2.35 lo the financial stalements which describe the uncerfainty relaled to the outcome of suif fited
by the group of minority shareholders in the matter of disposal of land and building appurtenant thereto.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order") issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, and on the basis of such checks of the books and
records as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given fo us, we set out
a statement on the matters spacified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicabla.

A

b)

b)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of Fixed Assats.

As explained to us, Fixed Assets of the company are physically verifled by the management
according to a phased programme designed to cover all the items which considering the size and
nature of operations of the company appears to be reasonable. Pursuant to such program, no
material discrepancies between book records and physical inventary have been noticed on physical
verification.

With respect to immovable properties of acquired land and buildings, according to the information
and explanations given to us and the records examined by us and based on the examination of the
court orders provided to us, we report that, the title deeds of such immovable properties are held in
the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date except as stated below:

Dwascription of Propariy Cost of Proparly
Land at Siliguri Rs 655372

The inventory (excluding stock lying with third parties) has been physically verified by the
management at regular intervals. In respect of inventory lying with third parties, these have
substantially been confirmed by them.

In our opinion and according to the information's and explanations given to us, the procedures of
physical verification of inventories followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in
relation to the size of the company and the nature of its business.

On the basis of our examinations of records of the inventory, in our opinion, the company is
maintaining proper records of inventory except in respect of work-in-progress, As in earier years,
work-in-progress has been determined by the management on the basis of physical verification. The
discrepancies ascertained on physical varification betwean the physical stock and the book records
ofinventory were not material in relation to the operations of the Company.

3.) The company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other parfies
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act 2013, Hence clausa is not
applicable.

4)) According to the records of the company examined by us and according to the information and
explanations given to us, in our opinion the company has given loans to parties covered under tha
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, The loan so granted has been granted in
compliance with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the companies Act, 2013.
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5)

6.)

7.)

8.)

8.)

10.)

1.)

The company has not accepted deposits and the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the
provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and the rules
framed there under are nol applicable.

The rules regarding maintenance of cost records which have been specified by the central governmeant
under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

a) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
employeas’ state insurance, income-{ax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of axcisa,
value added lax, cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities and there is no
arrears of outstanding statutory dues as at the last day of the financial year concerned for a period of
mare than six months from the date they became payable except as stated below:

Amaunt :
Nature of Dua 1R i Lecd) Parod
Muricioal Tax 354 1415
Muricipal Tax 0.59 Q24546

b) According to the records of the company examined by us and according to information and
axplanations given to us, there are no dues in respect of income tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax or cess which have not been deposited on account of
any dispute except as stated below:

Nature of Statute | Nafure of Amount | Period Forum where pending
Dues (Rs in
Lacs)
West Bengal Tax | Entry Tax 0.16 201415 Hon'bleHigh Couwrd of Calcutta
on Entry of Goods 2.00 207516
into Local Areas
Act, 2013

Central Excise Act| Excise Duty, | 9100.74 | 1994-96 Assistant/Additional/Deputy
1944 Interest and 2000-01 Commissioner,
Penalt 2001-02 CommissionarAppeal)
4 Appellate Tribunal and High Court

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations given ta
us, the Company has neither defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to any financial institution,
bank and governmeant nor has it any outstanding debenture; hence the clause is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there was no money raised by way of initial
public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and term loan has been applied, on an
overall basis, for the purpose for which they were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that neither any fraud by the
company nor on the company by its officers / employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

As examined by us, the company has paid remuneration o manageral personnel during the perod in
accordance with the requisite approval mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V
to the Companies Act, 2013.
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12.) Thecompany is not a nidhicompany. Hence clause is not applicable.

13.) According to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that all the transactions
with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the
details have been disclosed in the financial statements etc., as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

14.) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has neither made
any preferential allotment or private placement of shares nor fully or partly convertible debentures during
the year under review. Hence clause is not applicable.

15.) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them. Hence clause is not
applicable.

16.) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that company is not required to be
registered u/s 45-|A of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

1. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

2. Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

3. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreemsent with the books of account.

4. Inouropinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

5. Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2016 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2016 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

6. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financials reporting of the company
and the operating effectiveness of such contrals, refer to our separate reportin Annexure A.

7. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and fo the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a) (i)  Note 2.31 to the financial statements, which describes the uncertainty related to the
outcome of pending dispute in the matter of provision of interest unsecured loan.

(i) Note 2.32 to the financial statements which describes the uncertainty related to the
outcome of pending dispute in the matter of Excise duty against Central Excise
Department.

(i)  Note 2.33 to the financial sfatements which describes the uncertainty related fo the
outcome of pending dispute against West Bengal Government in the matter of Entry Tax.
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(iv) Note 2.35 to the financial statements which describes the uncertainty related fo the
outcome of suit filed by the group of minority shareholders in the matter of disposal of land
and building appurtenant thereto.

b) The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

¢) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, fo the Investor
Education and Protsction Fund by the Company.

ForS.M.DAGA&CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 303119E

Deepak Kumar Daga
(Partner)
Membership No. 059205

Date: 30"day of May, 2016
Place: Kolkata—-700001.
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ANNEXURE A TO THE AUDITOR REPORT

Report on the Internal Financlal Controls under Clause (I) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013

TO THEMEMBERS OF NTC INDUSTRIES LIMITED

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of NTC INDUSTRIES LIMITED as of
31st March 2016 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FORINTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the intermal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
CompaniesAct, 2013.

AUDITORS'RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Charterad
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud orerror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

i) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions ofthe assets of the company.

ntc industries limited ANNUAL REPORT _ 2015-18_PAGE #57



i) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company.

iii) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of ths internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

OPINION

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls overfinancial reporting were operating effectively as at 31
March 2016, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

ForS.M.DAGA&CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 30311SE

Deepak Kumar Daga
(Partner)
Membership No. 059205

Date: 30"day of May, 2016
Place: Kolkata - 700 001.
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BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2016

{Amount in )
8.
N FRER R EEAn st ;-'-;. 2016 st I‘:r:m 2015
L | EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Shareholders' funds
{8} Share capial 21| 107,500,000 107, 500,000
[®) Ressres and surplus 22| 205528838 | 313428838 | 10,902 301 | 318,402 301
2. Hon-currant llabilites
{8} Long - term borrowings 23| 20,000,000 20,000,000
B} Long - term provisions 24| 30581134| 50,581,134 | 22881316 42681316
4. Cwment labllities
{8} Short - term bomowings 25| 27,249,600 46,049,553
Trade payables 26 16,845,784 20,849 415
Cher current liab#fics 27 54,715,140 62,730 459
Short - b provisions 28| 6146410 | 1068956934 | 6317995 | 135047427
Total 470,568,906 LIE0N
0. | ASSETS
1. Non-current assels
(8) Fixed assats 28
{i} Tangible assels BB, 726 850 70,827 6537
(i} Capital wark - in - progress . 117, 324
B8, 728,650 0,944 861
(B) Non current Inestments 210 6,414,997 6,414,597
{€) Defarred tax assats {nat) 211 7,716,848 6,511,522
{9} Long - term loans and advances 212 | 51900280 | 134,767,775 | 51900280 [ 135780660
2. Currant assets
{8) Imventories 213| 45406422 38,392,305
B} Trade receivables 214 B,654 254 15,898,068
(£} Cash and bank balances 218 4,424 421 12,511,450
{2} Short - tenm loans end advances 216 | 277585034 | 336,199,131 | 204,848,547 | 381,450,378
470,968,906 497,231,030
Total —
Significant accounting policses and 1
Moles 1o and forming parts of Finencial Slatemanis FJ
This is he Balance Sheel refermed o in our reporl of even dabe
For 5. M. DAGA & CO. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No. 303118E
Nilotpal Deb Ravi Prakash Pincha
Managing Director Diractor

Deepak Kumar Daga

Partner
Membership No. 059205

Place : Kolkata,
Date : 30th day of May, 2016

Prem Chand Khator

Chief Financial Officer

Sunil Kumar Varma

Company Secretary
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STATEMENT OF

PROFIT & LOSS

for the year ended 31st March 2016

{Amount in T
51 As Ap at
No. b Hew 315t March, 2016 31st March, 2015

REVENUE
Revenus from operations . 217 | 18518583 00,204 521
Leas : Excise duty 98,332,768 | 08853223 | 60909757 | 230,204,766
Other income 2.18 32 052 753 15,088 535
Total revenus 120,905,975 2458 383 301
EXPENGES
Cost of malerials conaumead 2149 44 388 416 108,347,602
Purchasa of stock in trade 2.3 1,122,578 -

Changes in invantories of finished goods & stock in trade | (12,895,357} 208,581
Employes banafis expansa 222 41,711,113 ar.BB1.aT?
Finance cosis 2.3 381587 6,024,332
Diapraiakon 28 5,002,704 8.430,014
Diher expenses 2.24 43,437 813 777,254
Total expenses 126,582 B8T 38, GEE BED
Profit|Loss) before exceptional fems (5,677,912} 49,717 441
Add | (Less) | Excaptional itamsa -
ProfitiLoss) belore Tax (PBT) (5,877 212} 9,717 441
Tax expanses :
(&) Current tax 500,877 1,843 488
(o) Tax adjustments for sarer years 1,114,781
{t) Dweferad tax {1,205 326} (704,449} | (5617608} [ [2.558.53T)
Profit (loss] for the period after Tax [PAT) (4,973,483} 12,276,878
Earnings par share: (Refers note no.2.26) (0,48} 1.14
Sagnificant accounting policies and 1
Moles bo and forming pans of Financial Sialements 2

This ks the Statement of Profil & Loss mferad 1o in owr repor of even date

For 5. M. DAGA & CO. For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No. 3031189E

Ravi Prakash Pincha
Director

Nilotpal Deb
Managing Director
Deepak Kumar Daga

Partner
Membership No. 058205

Pream Chand Khator
Chief Financial Officer

Sunil Kumar Yarma
Company Secretary

Flace ; Kolkata.
Date : 30th day of May, 2016
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CASH FLOW

statement for the year ended
31st March 2016

{Amount in ¥
5L For the year ended For the year ended
_No, o batanit 315t March, 2016 315t March, 2015
&, |Cash flow from oporating activities :
Met profil bafore tax as per Stalemend of Profit & Loss {8,67T, 522) 8,717 441
Adjusimants for ;
Depraciation 5,002,708 B 430,014
Inleresl paid 2,787,311 4 BEE, 226
Sureiry balances writien off fllebillies wittan beck) - 1,308,0:9
Dcubtiull Debt Recovered - (2,613, 335)
Bed Debts 1,441,373 445 255
Provision for rental Income AS-19 7,021,845
Loss on Dmage Inputs and Rep of Finished Goods - 1,060,289
(Profil} { Loss on sale of ixed asseis 164,529 (6, TER 479)
Inferest racaived {28,751,509) (B, T 344)
Dividand received {1,260,000) (1,260,000)
Foreign Exchage (gain) / loss on lrade receivable (154,348) (1,270,415)
Provision of Employess” retiremant & current banefits 10,660,178 {10,130, 760} 2 430,080 6,740,058
Operating profil before working capital changes {15,808, 682) 16,466,400
{incraasa) / Decresse in inveniones (7,103,117) {1,686, 334)
{increasa) | Decreass in trade and othar receivables 27,888,111 {180,688, 118)
increase | (Docresse) in trade payables {15,303 506 ) 5,479,388 (43, TET 068 (X26,431,509)
Cash ganmrated from operalions (10,325, 284) [309,965,010)
Less: Direcl taxes (paid) [ mfunds nduding inlerest {net) (2,064 243) {8,592,057)
Mot cash genaratedi{used] from oparating activities {13,203, 528) {218,557 06T}
B. |Cash Mow Irom invesling activities :
Irveatrmant in Equity Shares of Subsidisny - (400,000)
Sale / {Purchese) of fixad Azsels {2,936,026) 233,545 684
{Daposit) | Rafund in Fixed Daposits - 1,002,322
Dividend recehed 1,260,000 1,260,000
inlarest recoived 28,751,508 6,744 344
Mat cash from invesling scl#ies 27,072,483 242 152,350
C. |Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds | [repaymeant) of kang lerm Dormowings . (33,144, 800)
Proceeds | (repayment) of short 8em bomoéings {18, TB5,853) 30,081,007
inlerest paid (2,787, 311) (4,525 573}
|Mat cash generatedi{used] in financing scthvities (21,567, 264) {17,880 456]
Mot incressaldecrease) in cash and cash equbabends (AeB4C) (T, TE8.2307) T P08 827
Cash and cash squivalents -Opaning balance B GER.05] SE3 234
Cash and cash equivalents -Closing balance 200,744 8,588,081
CASH AND CASH ECHIVALENTS COMPRISE:
Balances with bank B0 698 8,225,358
Cash on hand 100,046 463,663
000,744 8,680,051
This is thie Cash Fiow Statamant rafarred o in our ripord of aven dals
For S. M. DAGA & CO. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No. 303119E
Daga Nilotpal Dab Ravi Prakash Pincha
E:::ﬁ:: Kumar Managing Diractor Director
Membership No. 059205
Place : Kolkata. Prem Chand Khator Sunil Kumar Varma

Date : 30th day of May, 2016

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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NOTE 1-SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i. These financial statements have been prepared in sccordance with the generally accepted
accounting principles in India under the historical cost convention on accrual basis. Pursuant to
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, till
the standards of accounting or any addendum thereto are prescribed by Central Government in
consultation and recommendation of the National Financial Reporting Authority, the existing
Accounting Standards notified under the Companies Act, 1956 shall continue to apply.
Consequently, these financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with
the accounting standards notified under Section 211(3C) of the Companies Act, 1956 [Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, as amended] and other relevant provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013.

ii. Al assels and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as par the Company's normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule lll to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the
nature of products and the time batween the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation
in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the
purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

B. SYSTEMOFACCOUNTING
i. The Company follows the mercantile system of accounting and recognises income and expenditure
on an acorual basis except in case of significant uncerainties.
ii. Financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention.
iii. Estimates and assumplions used in the preparation of the financial statements and disclosures are
based upon management's evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of the
financial statements, which may differ from the actual results at a subsequent date.

C. REVENUERECOGNITION

. Revenue from sale of goods is recognised on transfer of all significant risks and rewards of ownership
to the buyer. Sales represent invoice value of finished goods sold inclusive of excise duty and
VAT/CST but exclude sales returns, claims, rate difference etc.

ii. Revenue from services are recognised on rendering of services to customears axcept otherwise
staled.

iii. Rental income {exclusive of Service Tax) from assets given on licence is recognised on rendering of
saervices to tenants. This policy is not applicable for variable rental income based on turmnover of the
tenant.

iv. Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis taking into account the amount cutstanding
and the rale applicable.

v. Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive is established.

D. FIXEDASSETS

i. Tangible assets, including those given on operating lease, are stated at cost of acquisition inclusive
of freight incurred, duties and taxes (net of CENVATNVAT) and incidental expenses less accumulated
depreciation.

ii. Capital work in progress, cost incurred on construction of fixed assets consists of all directly
attributable expenditure.

iii. Intangible assets are capitalised, where it is expected to provide future enduring economic benefits.

iv. Depreciation is provided on depraciable value (which is cost minus residual value) under writtan
down value method in the manner that the assets is depreciated over the useful life slated in
Schedule |l of the Companias Act, 2013.

v. Impairment - An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of the same axceeds its
recoverable amount. Such impairment loss is charged to the Staterment of Profit and Loss in the year
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in which an assel is identified as impaired. The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting period s
reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of the recoverable amount.

E. INVESTMENTS
Investments are bifurcated into non-currentand curment on the basis of intention of holding. Investmeants
that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year from the date of balance sheeat
are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as noncurment. Current
investments are carried at lower of cost or fair market value, detarminad on an individual investmeant
basis. Noncurrent investments are carried at cost. Provision for diminution in the value of noncurrent
investments is made, only if such a diminution is other than temporary.

F. INVENTORIES
a) Raw materials: Atlower of weighted average cost or net realisable value.
b) Work in progress: At lower of cost or net realisable value.
c) Finished goods and Stock in trade: At lower of cost or net realisable value.
d) Storesand spares, packing: Atlower of weighted average cost or net realisable value.

G. CASHANDCASHEQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits with banks, other short-term highly
liquid investments without significant risk and with original maturities of three months or less as per the AS
=3 "CASHFLOW STATEMENT.

H. FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS
Transactions danominated in foreign currencies are recorded at tha axchange rate pravailing at the date
of the transactions or that approximates the actual rale at the date of transactions.
Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the year are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss for the year.

L. EXCISEDUTY

Excise duty has bean accounted for at the time of manufacture of goods, accordingly excise duty on only
marketable finished goods lying as stock in factory has been considered for valuation.

J. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
a) Short term employee benefits: All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of
rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries,
wages and short term compensated absences, the expected cost of ex-gratia, etc are recognisad in
the period in which the employee renders the related service.
b) Post-employment banafits

i} Defined Contribution Plan: Employee benefits in the form of Provident fund, employees state
insuranca etc. ara considerad as dafined contribution plan and the contributions are charged to
the statement of profit and loss for the year when the contributions to the respective funds are
due.

i} Defined Benefit Plan: Employee beneafits in the form of gratuity and leave encashment are
considered as defined benefit plan and are provided for on the basis of an independent actuarial
valuation, using the projected unit credit method, as at the balance sheet date as per
requiraments of Accounting Standard- 15 (Revised 2005) on "Employee Benefits”.

Actuarial gains/losses, if any, are immediately recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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K. TAXATION
a) Current Tax: Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income
for the year in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Minimum Alternative
Tax credit available under section 115JB of the Income Tax Act, 1961 are accounted in the yearin
which the benefits are claimed.

b) Deferred Tax: Deferred tax is recognised subject to consideration of prudence on the basis of
timing differences being the difference between taxable income and accounting income that
originate in one period and is capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods using the
tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted as at the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax asset is recognised and carried forward only to the extent there is reasonable
cortainty that the asset will be realised in futurs.

L. PROVISIONS/CONTINGENCIES

i. The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of past events
and it is prabable that there will be outflow of resources and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made of the amount of the obligation. When there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or
disclosure is made.

ii. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjustad to reflect the current best
estimate. If it is no longer probable that the outflow of resources would be required to settle the
obligation, the provision is reversed.

M. CONTINGENT LIABILITY
Liabilities which are contingent in nature are not provided for in the accounts and the same are
separately disclosed by way of notes to account.

N. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Earnings per Share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. For the
purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are
adjusted forthe effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

0. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS
Adjustment of identifiable items of income and expenditure pertaining to prior period are accounted for
as prior period adjustments.
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SCHEDULE

Particulars st March 2018 F1st March 2015

Hates 1o Financal Stafements contd. ., (Ao in F )

Note 2- Amoumnits in the financial statemants are presentad in Rupees and rounded off to the nearsst decimals thereoff.
Previous yesr figunes have been regrouped [ reclassified, wherever necessary to conform bo Bhe cement year presantation.

Note 2.1- Share capital
a. Authorised share capltal :
16,500,000 {Previous yesr 18,500,000} Equily Shares of Re. 100 aach 165,000, 0 165,000,000
3 500,000 (Previows year 3,500,000) Preference Shares of As. 104~ each 35,000,000 35,000,000
Tolal 200,000,000 200,000,000
b. Issued, subscribad and pald-up share capital :
10,750,000 {Previous year 10,750,000} Equity Shares each fully paid 107,500,000 107,500,000
Total 107,500,000 107,500,000
. Reconciliation of number of aguity shares outstanding :
As at thae baginning of the year 10, 750,000 10,750,000
Ag gt the end of the year 10, 750,000 10,750,000

d. Rights, preferences & resirictions (o shares & restrictions on distribution of dividend and repayment of capital

The Company has lssued only class of equity shares. Each shareholder = afigihds for one vobe per share. Dividend proposead (if amy
by the Board of Direclors, is subject to the approval of shareholders, excepl in case of inlesdm dvidand. n e eveni of Liquidation, the
shangholders of Dndinary Shanes are aligible o receive the rernaining asssis of the Company afler distribaudion of all Bw preferential

amoumis, in proportion to their shareholding.

o. Shareholders holding more than 5% shares: % Holding % Holding
Shares held (No.) Shares hald (No.
1. Winod Dugar 18.24% 18.24%
2,068,023 2,068,023
17.85% 17.99%
2. Sheata! Dugar = —
1,833,424 1,933,424
3. ¥M3 Finance Privabe Limied 6.66% 6.66%
(Formarly Pyramid Sales Private Limited} 118122 T
4. Khatod Investments & Finance Company Limited B.57% 8.57%
821,225 821,225
5. T7% 5.77%
5 Sunder Lal Duspar
G20, 70 620,700

1. Share Resarved for |sswe:-

Mo Equity Shares have Deen resarved for issue under oplion & contracis/commaments for sabe of shares! dignvesiment a5 al

Balance Sheat date,

Nota 2.2- Reserves and surplus
a. Capital reserve
Mg per lagl Financial Stalamens 15,250,000 15,250,000
b, Capital mdamption resarve
Ag per lasi Financia! Statements 28,440 000 26,440,000
¢, Surplus, i.e., batance of staternent of proif and loss
As per |asl Financisl Stalamenls 168 212 301 156,935 323
Agid | Praf for the year 14,573 483} 12,276 878
Saerphus - As 8t the end of the year 164,238 838 168,212 301
Total 205,928,838 210,802,301
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Particulars 31ist March 2018 31st March 2015
Motes to Finencial Statements contd.... (Aot in ¥ )
Hote 2.3- Long - term borrowings
From other partias [Unescurad) (refar note nop2 33) 20,000,000 20,000,000
Total 20,000,000 20,000,000
Note 2.4- Long - lerm provisions
Prowision fior Employes Banefits 30,581,134 22 881,318
Tolal 30,581,134 22, BE1,316
HNota 2.5- Bhort - term borrowings
Working capltal loan from bank (Secured, repayable on demand) 27,249,600 46,049 553
For Ganaral Businass Purposa, Secured by corporase guaranies of group companias & by
personal guarantes of promabar, The applicable Inderest rete is base rale plus 3%,
Total K1 E00 553
HNote 2.6- Trade Payables
To Micn, Small & Medium Enlerprises - -
To oihers 160,845,704 20,848,215
[Tha Company s In communication with ils suppliers (o asoedain the applicab@y of "The
Micro, Srmall and Madiem Enemprisas Developrmeanl Acl, 20067, As al Ihe date of this
balance eheat the company hes not recetved any communications from any of 28
suppdiars raganding the applicabdity of the Act to tham. This has been refiad upon by the
anditors. ]
Tolal 18,845,764 20,849,415
Hote 2.7- Other current liabilities
Excisa duty payable (BOR) [refar note 2.32) 21,548,160 21,548,160
Slatulory liabilities 800,288 2,185,200
Advance from othar than related party B 628 355 0,508,029
Oiher payables 21,664, 818 28,957,396
Advance taken from subsidiany 1,941 66T -
Unciaémed dvidend (Refer Mote 2.38) 131,843 430,674
Total H,Hﬁ“ﬂ 62,730,459
Note 2.8- Short-term provislons
Incosma lax 2,844 GRE 1,843 408
Provision for Employes Benefits 3,702,045 A 374,507
Total L] 10 17,885
Hota 2.10- Mon-Current Investments
Investment in Equily Instruments, Trade Invesiments (al cost, fully paid)
Quoted
ROE Realty & Infrastructure Lid {12 60,000 shares of Rs 10 aach) 6,014,887 6,014,887
Aggregate Book Viakss of Quobed Invostment 6,014,567 6,014,997
Unguobesd: owmed Subsidi wee f 27ih Augusd, 2014
NTCIL Real Eslale Privale Limfed (10000 shanes of Rs 10 each) 100,000 100,000
MNTCIL Infrastructure Private Limited (10000 shares of Ra 10 each) 100,000 100,000
NTCIL Realty Privivhe Limited {10000 shanes of Rs 10 aach) 100,000 100,000
MTCIL Siliguri Estate Privaie Limited (10000 shares of Ris 10 each) 100,000 100,000
Tota 414,967 41407
Aggregate Book Value of Quoted Investment 6,014, 847 6,014,997
Aggregate Book Value of Ungquoted Investment 400,000 400,000
Aggregais Market Value of Quoted Investment 35,973,000 34,388,000
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Particulars 31ist March 2018 31st March 2015
Mobes 1o Financial Statemants contd fArmadid i )
Note 2,11- Deferred Tax Liabilities | {Assats) (net)
. Defermed lax assels |
- Frovaion for Employee Benefits 12,7182 402 11,418,280
Sub Total - Defarred tax Assals 12,782 402 11,418,280
b. Deferred tax liabilities :
= Deprecialion allowance on fixed assels 5,075,564 4,906,768
Sub Total - Deforred tax liabilities 5 075 564 4,906,744
Taoital {ab) 7,716,848 8,511,522
Mote 2.12- Long - term loans and advances
{Unaecured, conssdered good)
Deptit wilh Excise Aubhorily 11 416,000 1,416,000
Refund receivable from Excias Authority (BOR) (refer note no. 2.32) AD0,493 280 40,403 380
Total 51 280 &1 280
Mote 2.13- Inventories
{As taken, valeed & cartifled by the Managemaeant)
{fior valuation refar noda no.1(F))
Flaw materiaks 15,388 238 223668443
Finished goods 26,578,301 13,870,258
Stock-n-irade 289,315 -
Shones and Spanes 3,241 667 2,063 603
Total 45,495,422 38,382,305
Mote 2.14- Trade receivables
(Unsecured, conssdersd good)
Culglanding for more than six months 4,533,360 6,827 471
Ckhers 4,760,894 8,970,587
Sy Toual B, 50, 254 15,808,068
(Uresecaanisd, conssiensd doubtiull}
Caistanding for more than siz months - B20,388
Less:Provision for bad and doubtfull dab (B20,386)
S Todal - -
Total B, 504,254 15,808,068
Mote 2.15- Cash and bank balances
Cash and cash emdvalents |
- Balances with bank 800,608 8,225,358
= Cash on hand (As carified by the managerment) 100,048 463,893
Sulby Total D00, T 8,669,051
D bank balanoes ;
- Unpaid Dévidend 131,843 288,533
- Deaft in Hand . 131,144
= Fixed Deposis (For lion against guaraniees and letler of crodd) 3,391,735 3,381,735
Suly Telal 3,523 678 3,822 409
Total 4424421 12,511,458
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Particulars 31ist March 2018 31st March 2015
Miotes ta Financial Statemants contd. . .. {Amaounf inF )
Mote 2.168- Short-term loans and advances
{Unsacured, conssdered good)
Loan o Body Corporate (other than relabed) 208 858,785 230,604 456
Advance {0 directors & officers of the company 655 666 42,710
Balance with revenue suthoribes 42 508 425 184
Advange Incoma Tax & TDS 20,038,283 17,072,081
Cither advances 38,532,743 38,807 4T1
Inerest sooneed but not due 295,879 .
Deposits 7,181,220 G, 885 a2
Prapald Expangses 283,728 405,663
Total ZTT, 585,034 294,648,547
Mote 2.17- Revenue from operations
Sille of Goods
- Sale of manufactured goods -
= Domestio 125,343177 106,829,425
- Export 51,456,005 154 955,178
- Sale of stock In irada 1,376,187
Sub Total [a) 178,176,278 260,784,503
Oither operating Incomes
= Ramnilal Incoma 2,320,875 38,296 663
- Sale of Manufactunng Wasts 138,180 123,268
= [mome froem Managamend Consufancy 1,600,000
- Sale of Export Benaefil Licanss 3,048, 547 -
Sub Total (i) 7,008,712 39,419,021
Total {a+b) 185,185,981 300,204,523
Mote 2.18- Othar income
Prof [ (Loss) on sale of fioed azsel (154, 528) B, 768,478
Imtarest mocoms 28,751,508 6,744,344
Dividend {non curmend, bade investments) 1,260,000 1,260,000
Recovery of bad & doubitfull dabt - 2,813,335
Sundry balances | kabilies written back [nel) 388,634
Excise rafund 1,588 508 -
Fosedgn cumency fuchealion gain 154 348 1,270,415
Dihwier raceipls 64 281 4318682
Total HE,HE__?EH 10,088,535
Mote 2.19 (a}- Cost of Materlal Consumed during the year
Crpaning Stock of Raw Material 22,368,443 22 2 543
Add: Purchase of Blaw Malerdal 30 142 322 100,901 BT3
Less: Damage of Raw Material 1,734,710 1,208,681
Less: Closing Stock of Raw Matesial 15,388,230 22,388 443
Consumption 44 388,416 108,347,852
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Particulars 31ist March 2018 31st March 2015
Motes o Financial Siaiemsants contd___. {Amount in T )
Nots 2.18 (b)- Cost of materials consumed % consumption/ | % consumption /
valus-consumption | valus-consumption
Fiaw Tobaood 3B.63% 34.61%
17,147 988 37 487 061
Filter Riods 20.07% 24 55%
B,508 134 26,604,118
Blank 14.98% 12.88%
6,647,611 13,940 800
Othars 26.32% 27 8%
11,684,713 30,208,715
Total 100.00%. 100, 00
44,388 426 108,347,602
Mote 2.18 (¢} Particulars of materials consumed | % and valua)
imporiad 2.66% 1.03%
1,182,074 2,086, 140
Indigenous e BA.OTA
43,206,352 106,281,552
Total 100.00% 100040 %
44 388 426 108,347,682
MHote 2.20- Purchase of stock in trade
Match Boxes{100%) 1.122 578 -
Total 1,122,578 -
Mote 2.21- Change in inventories of finished goods and stock - in - trade
Cpaning Stock of
- Finished goods 13.5T0.258 14,178,850
= Stock - in - irade - -
Total (a) 13,570,258 14,178, B50
Choaing Siock of
- Finished goods 26,576,301 13,8970,258
- Stock - in - rade 280,315 -
Total [b) 26,665 616 13,870 258
(Increasa) / Decrease in invenlories (a-h) [12,885,357) 208,591
Mote 2.22- Employee benefits axpense
Salaries . wapes, bonus, allowances, eic 27,718 624 31,013,112
Conlribulion o provident and other fund 2428 087 2,428 349
Staff wollam expenses 1 5T, 586 1,782,314
Prowiaion for Gratulty 9,008,396 2,656,602
Total 41,711,713 3T.BE15TT
Mole 2.23- Finance costs
Interest paid 2,767 311 4,688 276
Financa Charges 1,048 606 1,336,108
Total 381507 6,024,332
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Particulars 31ist March 2018 31st March 2015
Maoles o Financal Statamanis conid... [Amaimi in i )
Mote .24 [a)- Other expanses
a, Manufacturing expenses :
Slores and spares consumad 3,050, 264 4,745,880
Power and fual consumed 7,549,188 11,726,776
Machine repairs Ti5,514 BREATT
Imward freight, coolle, carage and ofher expenges 1,470,341 3,115,502
Diher manufaciuring expanses o8B 6T 1,046,212
Total (&) 13,381,765 21,520,747
b. Administration expenses ;
Rant - 61,314
Rales and Taxes 62,853 Bd 240
Busiding Repairs 1278836 2,811,120
Other Maintenanca 201,432 164 9858
Wehice mainienance expensas AT 419 BRI, 9TS
Insarance Premium 354,683 610,972
Sundry balances | liabilities writien off (net) 1,308,029
Travelling and conveyance 320,268 552478
Postage, lelegraph and telephones 327,543 BET, 255
Printing and stabionery 321,705 875,233
Legal & Professional Charges 3,815,736 8,814, 417
Bad Db 1,441,373 445, 255
Electricity charges T20,403 Bd1,024
Land reverms and municipsl Eues (ned) 523,815 THR1TE
Loas on Damage nguls and Rep of FE 1,080,284
Miscallaneous axpeEisos 16,794 1,663,895
Auditors' remuneration
= il fes 75,000 75,000
- Tex gudit faa 25,000 25,000
Total (b) 10,573,770 21,544 661
&.Selling and distribution expenses :
Advertsemseni and publicity expansas 2.313,772 7,205 B33
Destribnsdion Expenses & Sales Promotion Expanses 4,171,602 8,127,533
Sales tay 3247708 5,688,838
Clubasard fraight and forwarding changes 49780877 12,747,713
Brokerage, commission and discounts 4,770,318 1,638,540
Total je) 19,482,378 35,608 845
Total [a+b+e) 43,437,813 TH773.254
Nots 2.24(b) Particulars of stores and spares consumed | % and valus) %consumption/ | % consumgtion /
valueconsumptlion | value-consumpilon
Imported 0.00% 6.34%
- 30,072
o 100.00% 83 68%
3,050,264 4444 808
Total 100.00% 100.00%
3,050,264 4,745,880
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2.24{(c) In the opinion of the Board the current assels, loans and advances are nol less than the stated value if
realised in ordinary course of business. The provisions for all known liabilities are adequate. There are
no contingent liabilities except stated, as informed by the management.

225 The Business of the company falls under a single segment i.e. Manufacturing of Cigarette and Smoking
Mixture. In view of the general classification notified by Central Government in exercise of powers
conferred uf/s 129 of Companies Act, 2013 for companies operating in single segment, the disclosure
requirement as per Accounting Standard - 17 on "Segment Reporting™ are not applicable to the
company. The company's business is malnly concentrated n similar geographical, political and
economical conditions; hence disclosure for geographical segment is also not required.

2.26 Eamrmings PerSharein accordance with AS-20:-

Earnings per share is computed as under:- 201516 2014-15

Profit after tax available for equity shareholders (A) () 4,976,468 12,276,978
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding (B} 10,750,000 10,750,000
Face value per equity share (z) 10 10
Eamings per share - Basic & Diluted (A/B) (T) {0.46) 1.14

227 Intermsof AS -19 on “Leases”, disclosures for operating lease arrangements are as under:-

{Amount in T |
E:‘_ PARTICULARS 2015-16 | 2014-15
| Asset under leasing arrangement Building *
a) Gross Block Mil Mil
b) Less: Accumulated Depreciation Mil Mil
c) MNet Block Nil Mil
Il | Depreciation for the year. Nil 147,843
Total contingent rents recognised as income / (expense) in the
W statement of profit and loss for the year. A (7,021,345)
IV | General Description: Not Applicable

* Detail of assets does not include value of part of a building given on lease since its separate value
could not be ascertained from whole block.
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2.28

Post Employment Benefits

a)

Defined Contribution Plans: The Company has recognised an expense of

Rs.24,28,087/- (Previous Year Rs.24,29,349/-) towards the defined contribution plans.

b) Defined Benefit Plans: As per actuarial valuation as on March 31, 2016 and
recognised in the financial statements in respect of amployee benefit schemes:
T in Lacs)
2015-16 2014-15
PARTICULARS
Gratulty Leave Gratuity Loave
| | Components of employer expense
1__| Current service cost .77 2.53 8.31 0.18
2 | Interesl cost 2431 T 22.54 0.55
3 Expactad return on plan asseals - - - -
4 | Curtailment cost/ (credit) - - - -
5 | Setflement cost! [credit) = - - -
E | Pasiservice cost - - - -
7__| Actuarial losses! (gains) 62.08 1.55 (5.29) (6.68)
Total emplover expense recognise d in the stalement
B of profil & loss 98.18 4.45 2857 15.95)
Gratuity expense is recognised in “Gratuily” and “Leave Encashment” in *Salary, Wages and Bonus® under Note
—-2.21.
Il_| Net Asset! (Liability) recognised in balance sheet R ~ .
1 | Present value of defined benefit obligation 336.21 6.62 269.99 2.57
2 | Fair value of plan assets - - - -
3 | Funded status [Surplus/ (Deficit]] (336.21) (6.62) | (268.99) [2.57)
4 | Unrecognised past service cosis - - - -
5 | Net Assel (Liability) recognised in balance she at (336.21) [6.62) | (260.99) 12.57)
lll_| Change In Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) = o .3
1 | Present value of DBO at the beginning of period 269.99 2.57 293.62 11.29
2 | Current service cost 177 253 8.31 018
3 | Inlerest cost 24.31 0.ar 22 54 0.55
4 | Curtailment cost [ (credit) - - - -
& | Setlement cost/ {credil) - - - -
3] Plan amendments - - - -
T | Acquisitions - - - -
B | Actuarial losses | (Gains) 62.08 1.55 {5.29) (6.68)
8 | Benefit payments {31.95) (0.39) {50.20) [2.78)
10 | Present value of DBO at the end of period 336.241 6,62 269.09 2.a7
IV | Change in fair value of assets
1 | Plan assets al the beginning of period - - -
2 | Acquisiton adjustment = - = =
3 | Expectad retumn on plan assels - - - -
4 | Actual Company coniributions 31.85 (0.39) 50,20 2.78
5 | Actuarial Gain ! (Loss) - - - -
6 | Benalil paymenis {31.685) {0.39) (50.20) (2.78)
¥ | Plan assets af the end of period - - - -
V| Actuarial Assumptions e T
1 | Discounl rate B.00% B.00% B.00% B.00%
2 | Expected retum on assels MA MA M.A H.A
3 | Salary ezcalations: - Tobacoo 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% S00%
Indian Indian
Assured | Assured
; Livas Lives Lhcs v
4 | Mortality (2006-08) {2006-08)
Mortality | Mortalty | yimate | Ultimate
(2006-08) | (2006-08)
Uitimate | Ultimate [
5 Tha Estimates of fulure salary Increases, considered in actuarial valuation takes account of Inflation,
seniority, promodion and other redevant faciors such as supply and demand in employment markel.
8 Discount rate s based upon the market yields available on Government Bonds at the accounting date with

a lerrm thal matches with thal of liabllibes
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228 Related party disclosuras:-
{A) KeyManagement Personnel and their relatives:-

Sl. No. | Name Designation /Relationship
1. Nilotpal Deb Managlng Director
(B) Enterprises where control exists (wholly owned subsidiaries):-
Sl. No. Name of Enterprise Sl No. Name of Enterprise
1 MNTCIL Siliguri Estate Private Limited 2 NTCIL Realty Private Limited

3 NTCIL Infrastructure Private Limited 4

NTCIL Real Estate Private Limited

Disclosure of transactions with related parties and outstanding balances:-

Particulars KMP and their relatives Subsidiaries
Electricity Income () 52"'?_5_‘?
. - 603,785 =
Remuneration Paid (605,906) {—)
Advance given against Gratuity 450'?3? E::l
Advarce taken Sy HiERaD
(-} (==}
Advance taken repaid {_} E.EDH.IEJEE;
Advance given 219.?50}- E;_?
Advance given against Salary adjusted m'?ﬂ [_:,
Investments in Equity Shares (] (400,000)
Sale of Fixed Assets {(~] (230,168,609)

Balances outstanding

Investment in Equity Shares {:_; { ﬁ?ﬁﬁ?
Advance given against Gratuity 45[]‘?5? [:,
Advance given against Salary {11%%?]%? [_,__,
Advance taken {__], 4.,553,?5:;
— 129,770

Trade Receivable

()

Mote: - (i)

Previous year figures have been given in brackels.

(ii) As tha liability of gratuity and compensated absence are provided on actuarial
basis for the company as a whole, the amount pertaining to the directors are not
ascertainable and therefore notincluded in the above

(i) Related party relationships are identified by the company on the basis of available

infarmation.
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2.30  In terms of confirmation of sale of assets of New Tobacco Co. Ltd. (In Liquidation) in favour of the
Company vide order dated 19" April, 2006 of Calcutta High Court,. Conveyance deed of Siliguri Property
Is yet to be executed for transfer of title in favour of the Company.

2.31 Asuit has been filed against the company in the year 1299 for recovery of Rs.20,000,000/- along with
interest which is still pending before the Hon'ble High Court, Kolkata. The company disputes the claim of
the party and as the matter is sub-judice no provision for interest has been made.

232 Inview of the amendment made in the Union Budget 2003 with retrospective effect, the Company is
liable to refund excise duty amounting to Rs.49,238, 160/ received/ receivable in terms of notification
no.32/99 dated 8" July, 1989 issued by the Central Government, on account of Badarpur unit in Assam
and interest thereon amounting to Bs.13,51,65,973 (PY Rs 12,56,93,128 /-) upto 31" March, 2016. The
Company had challenged the amendment in Hon'ble High Court at Guwahati and subsequently the
matter was transferred to Hon'ble Supreme Court of India. The Hon'ble Supreme Court vide its order
dated 19" September, 2005 has confirmed such retrospective amendment made by the Central
Government through its Budgel Moiification. However, the company was of the view that the
amendment was not applicable lo it and a clarification / modification petition to that effect was filed and
admitted by the Hon'ble Supreme Court. On 31" October, 2007, the Central Excise Depariment had
passed a fresh adjudication order confirming the demand and the company has appealed before the
Appellate Tribunal which was brought to the notice of the Hon'ble Supreme Court. The Hon'ble Supreme
Court disposed off the petition on 25" March, 2008 with a direction that appeal shall be decided by
appellate authority on merits and in accordance with law. The appeal filed before the Tribunal was
disposed oft without relief. The Company moved to Hon'ble High court at Guwahati but failed to get any
relief against the order dated 19.04.2012, the company has again filled the appeal before the Hon'ble
Supreme Court of India. The Hon'ble Supreme Court of India vide order dated 07.02.2014 set aside the
order of the Hon'ble High court at Guwahati and requested to deal with the questions of law set aside in
its previous order. In terms of this the Hon'ble High Court at Guwahati vide its order dated 19.11.2014
remanded the matter to CESTAT at Kolkata for consideration of the matter in accordance of law. The
said appeal is still pending to be decided. The company is confident to gat the full relief as the entire
benafit was passed on o the consumer and as such the company does not accept any further liability
and no provision is considered necessary based on the expert legal advice. Further to this the company
has accounted for during financial year 2000-01 a sum of Rs. 40,493,280/- as excise duty refund
receivable (Badarpur) and Rs.21,548 160/- towards excise duty payable (Badarpur) in terms of the
above mentioned notification.

2.33 The company has during the year under review has filed an appeal before the Calcutta High court
against the entry tax imposed by state government on the import of input from other states and
accordingly not paid the eniry tax to the tune of Rs.2,16,626 (P.Y. Rs. 24 757/-) till the date of financial
statements. But the same has been provided for in the financial statements.

2.34  Contingent Liability in previous year includes Assessed VAT of Ris 110.24 lakhs for the Financial Year
2011-12. Company has preferred appeal before the appellate authority against this order. This demand
of VAT is due to wrong treatmant of the VAT deducted at source by the government contractee from the
transferee company at the time of demerger in 2010-11 and wrongly depasited in the name of the
company. The said appeal is decided in favour of Company.

235 Inthe preceding financial year a group of minority shareholders had filed a suit against the company in
the court of Learned Fourth Civil Judge (Junior Division) at Sealdah, West Bengal. Since the matter is
subjudice in the cour, any disclosures given at this moment would be prejudicial to the interest of the
company and that of the stakeholders.
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235 Contingentliabilities :

¥ in Lacs)
Particulars As at 31.03.16 As at 31.03.15
Claims against the company not acknowledged as dabt 144.54 144.54
Disputed Liabilities relating to Cantral Excise Damand 9100.74 2006.02
Disputed Liabilities relating to VAT & 110.24
Disputed Liabilities relating to Entry Tax 217 0.25

2.37 Foreignexchange earnings and outgo:

{% in Lacs)
Year Ended Year Ended
Description 31.03.16 31.03.15
F.0.B Value of Expord 474,02 1028.65
{Tin Lacs)
Year Ended Year Ended
Chemeaription 31.03.16 31.03.15
- Raw materials 1.78 30.36
Total 1.78 30.36

Nota No. 1 & 2 forms part of the financial statamant

For 5. M. DAGA & CO. For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No. 3031189E

Nilotpal Deb Ravi Prakash Pincha
Managing Director Director
Deepak Kumar Daga
Partner
Membership No. 059205
Place ; Kolkata. Prem Chand Khator  Sunil Kumar Varma
Date : 30th day of May, 2016 Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary
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Form - ADCA1
{Pursuant to first proviso io sub-section [3) of section 128 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounis) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate
companies/joint ventures

Part "A": Subsidiaries

5. No. 1 2 3 4
sttty | Vot | e, | gkt | iien
Reporting period for the
;‘;:'ﬁ?m:ﬂ“:‘?mn:':“"‘ 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-16
reporting periocd
Reporting currency and
Exchange rale a8 on the last
date of the relevant Financial MR INR IR IR
year in the case of foreign
subsidiaries
Share caplial 00, 000,00 00, 00000 100, 000,00 00,000,000
Reserves & surplus [2BB,208,00) 33,558,601.00 {30,281.00) (30,234 .00)
Total asseis 189, 173,840.00 218 250 408 00 o, 709,00 Th, 788 .00
Total Liabiities 188, 173,840.00 218,250 408 00 i, 709,00 75, TEE.00
Investmenis -

Turmower 256 B5E B2 .00 6é, 362 438.00 - .
Profii before taxation {130,1827.00) 32 4235 614,00 (3,0 000 13,000,000
Provision for taxation 550,000.00 8,350 000,00

Profil after taxation 1,861,827.00 24,073 614,00 (3,067 .00) ({3, 00, D0
Proposed Dividend -

%o of sharehalding 100% 100% 100% 100%

Motes: 1, Names of aubsidiaries which are yet to commence operations =MTCIL Reatty Py Lid. and NTCIL
Siliguri Estate Pvi Lid. are yet to commance operations.

2, Hames of subsidiaries which have been liquidaled or sold during the year- Mong

Part “B": Assoclates and Jolnt Ventures

Sigtamant pursuant to Secthon 129 (3] of the Companies Act, 2013 related 1o Asscciate Companies and Jobnt Vanlures

Narma of Associates!oint Venlures

il

T

Hil

Nil

Latest audited Balance Shaat Date

Shares of AssociatolJoint Ventures
held by the company on tha year and

L

Armourl of Imvestmenl in
Associaies!Joint Veniure

Exend of Holding %

Description of how there s
significant influence

Reason why the associaleljoint
vanturs |s noiconsolidatad

Ml worlh ablribulabls Lo
Sharaholding s par latest
auwdited Balance Sheat

NL

Profit | Loss for the yoar

|, Considenpd in Consolidatan

. Mol Considened in Consoldafion

Milotpal Deb
Managing Director

Sunil Kumar Varma
Company Secretary

For and on bahalf of the Board

Ravi Prakash Pincha
Director
Pram Chand Khator
Chisf Financial Officar
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TO THE MEMBERS OF NTC INDUSTRIES LIMITED

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NTC INDUSTRIES LIMITED, which comprise the
Balance Sheel as at March 31, 2016, the Statement of Profit & Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year
ended on that date, and also a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information,

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statermeants that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequale accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assels of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irmegularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting pelicies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial stalements based on our audit. We have taken into
account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be
included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the
Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to abtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an
adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and the operating effectivenass of such
controls. An audil also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

OPINION

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 315t March, 2016, and its Profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.
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EMPHASIS OF MATTER

We draw attention to the following matterin the Notes to the following financial statements:

a) Note 2.32 to the financial statements, which describes the uncertainty related to the outcome of pending
dispute in the maftter of provision of interest unsecured loan.

b) Note 2.33 to the financial statements which describes the uncertainty related to the outfcome of
pending dispute in the matter of Excise duty with Central Excise Department.

¢) Note 2.34 to the financial statements which describes the uncertainty related to the outcome of pending
dispute with West Bengal Government in the matter of Entry Tax.

d) Note 2.36 to the financial statements which describes the uncertainty related to the outcome of suit filed
by the group of minority shareholders in the matter of disposal of land and building appurtenant thereto.

REPORT ON OTHERLEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government

of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, and on the basis of such checks of the books and

records as we considerad appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us, we setout

a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

1. a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of Fixed Assets.

b) As explained to us, Fixed Assets of the company are physically verified by the management
according to a phased programme designed to cover all the items which considering the size and
nature of operations of the company appears to ba reasonable. Pursuant to such program, no
material discrepancies between book records and physical inventory have been noticed on physical
verification.

¢)  With respect to immovable properties of acquired [and and buildings, according to the information
and explanations given to us and the records examined by us and based on the examination of the
court orders provided to us, we report that, except as stated in Note No. 2.31 regarding non
registration of property at siliguri of Rs.6,55,372/- in the name of the company, all other the title
deeds of land are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date except as stated
below:

2. a) The inventory (excluding stock lying with third parties) has been physically verified by the
management at regular intervals. [n respect of inventory lying with third parties, these have
substantially been confirmed by them.

b) In our opinion and according to the information‘s and explanations given fo us, the procedures of
physical verification of inventories followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in
relation to the size of the company and the nature ofits business.

¢) On the basis of our examinations of records of the inventory, in our opinion, the company is
maintaining proper records of inventory except in respect of work-in-progress. As in earlier years,
work-in-progress has been determined by the management on the basis of physical verification. The
discrepancies ascertained on physical verification between the physical stock and the book records
of inventory were not material in relation o the operations of the Company.

The company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or others
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act 2013.Hence
clauseis not applicable.

3. According to the records of the company examined by us and according to the information and
explanations given to us, in our opinion the company has given loans to parties covered under the
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. The loan so granted has been granted in
compliance with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the companies Act, 2013.
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4. The company has not accepted deposits and the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the
pravisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and the rules
framed there under are not applicable.

8. The rules regarding maintenance of cost records which have been specified by the central government
under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

B. a)

b)

The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
employees’ stale insurance, income-tax, sales-lax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise,
value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities and there is
no arrears of outstanding statutory dues as at the last day of the financial year concerned for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable except as stated below:

Armour
Nature of Due (Rs in Lacs) Parod
Municipal Tax .84 1415
Municipal Tax 0.59 Q24546

According to the records of the company examined by us and according to information and
explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect of income tax, sales tax, wealth tax,
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax or cess which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute except as stated below:

MNature of Statute | Mature of Amount | Perod Forum wharne pending

Dues {Rs in

Lacs)
West Bangal Tax | Enfry Tax 0.16 2014-15 Hon'bleHigh Court of Calcutta
an Eniry of Goods 2.00 201516
inlo Local Areas
Act, 2013
Central Excise Act| Excize Duty, | 9100.74 | 1954-06 Azszistant/AdditionalDepuly
16944 Intarast and 2000-07 Commissionar,
2001-02 Commissioner(Appaal)
i Appeliate Tribunal and High Court

7. According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has neither defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing lo any financial institution,
bank and government nor has it any outstanding debenture; hence the clause is not applicable.

8. According to the Information and explanations given to us, there was no monay raised by way of initial
public offer ar further public offer (including debt instruments) and term loan has been applied, on an
owverall basis, for the purpose for which they were obtained.

9. According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that neither any fraud by the
company nor on the company by its officers / employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

10. As examined by us, the company has paid remuneration to managerial personnel during the period in
accordance with the requisite approval mandated by the provisions of section 187 read with Schadule Vo

the Companies Act, 2013.
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1.

12

13.

14.

15.

The company is not a nidhi company. Hence clause is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that all the transactions
with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the
details have been disclosed in the financial statements etc., as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has neither
made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares nor fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year underreview. Hence clauseis not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them. Hence clause is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that company is not required to be
registered u/s 45-1A of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

REPORT ONOTHERLEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

1.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

[n our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2016 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2016 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) ofthe Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financials reporting of the company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, referto our separate report in Annexure A.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Reportin accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a) (i) Note 2.32 to the financial statements, which describes the uncertainty related to the
outcome of pending dispute in the matter of provision of interest unsecured loan.
(ii) Note 2.33 to the financial statements which describes the uncerfainty related to the
outcome of pending dispute in the matter of Excise duty with Central Excise Department.
(iii) Note 2.34 to the financial statements which describes the uncertainty related to the
outcome of pending dispute with West Bengal Government in the matter of Entry Tax.
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(iv)  Note 2.36 fo the financial statements which describes the uncertainty rejated to the outcome of
suit filed by the group of minority shareholders in the maltter of disposal of land and building
appurtenant thereto.

a) The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable [osses.

b) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

ForS.M.DAGA&CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 303119E

Deepak Kumar Daga
(Partner)
Membership No. 059205

Date: 30"day of May, 2016
Place: Kolkata—700001.
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ANNEXURE A TO THE AUDITOR REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013

TO THE MEMBERS OF NTC INDUSTRIES LIMITED

We have audited the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of NTC INDUSTRIES LIMITED as of
31st March 2016 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audil of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were cperating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence o company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of refiable financial information, as required under the
Companias Act, 201 3.

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, fo the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Charered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with athical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures (o obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the intemal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectivenass of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procadures salected depend on the
auditor's jJudgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statemants,
whether due to fraud or emor.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

)] Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company.
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i) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company.

i) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial confrols over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management overrids of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the intemal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

OPINION

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
31 March 2016, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Charterad Accountants of India.

ForS.M.DAGA&CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 303119E

Deepak Kumar Daga
(Partner)
Membership No. 059205

Date: 30"day of May, 2016
Place: Kolkata—-700001.
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CONSOLIDATED

BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2016

{Amount in €)
CTH As As at
Mo Particulars Note :nm-;-. 2018 31st March, 2015
L. | EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Shareholders' funds
() Share capital 21 | 107,500,000 107,500,000
(b) Reserves and surplus 22 | 230128012 | 346,628,012 | 2218086640 | 329,386 540
2. Neon-currant liabllities
(8) Long - term bormowings 23 | 101,627,759 20,000,000
(b} Long - termn provisions 2.4 30,561,134 | 132208893 | 22881016 | 42,881316
3. Current Nabilities
[8) Short - larm borowings 25 | 180,118,795 278,936,758
Trade peyables 26 10,916,503 20,648,415
Other cuent liabilitas 27 | 103,847,500 134,079,586
Short - ferm provisions 28 16,736,660 | 320,419,548 9,517,965 | 443 TE3 754
Total 799,257,352 816,051,719
Il. | ASSETS
1. MNon-curreni sassis
(@) Fixed assets 29
{1} Tangible assets 345,040,422 208,338 342
{4} Capital work - in - progress 28,761,971 6.3 4848, 106
374,802,393 361 824 448
(b} Mon curent investments 2.10 6,014,997 68,014,957
(c) Daferrod tax assots (ned) 2.1 7,716,848 8,511,522
() Long - term loans and advances 2.12 | 51,009,280 | 440,443,518 | 51,909.280 | 426,260,247
£, Current assets
(@) irventores 213 | 45485422 38,392 305
(b) Trade recalvablas 244 | 13481000 36,603,560
(¢} Cash and bank balances 215 6,313,353 13,234,380
(d) Short - term loans and advances 216 | 292523961 | 358,813,834 | 301,471,188 | 389,751 472
799,267,352 816,051,719
Total
Sagnifican accounting policies and q
Moles bo and fonming parls of Financial Slaternents 2
This is the Batance Sheel referred b in our report of even date
For and on bahsall of the Board
For 5. M. DAGA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration MNo. 303119E
Milotpal Deb Ravi Prakash Pincha
Managing Dérector Déractor
Doepak Kumar Daga
Pariner
Mombership No. 059205
Place : Kolkata. Pram Chand Khator Sunll Kumar Varma
Date : 308h day of May, 2018 Chinf Financial Officar Company Secrotary
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

PROFIT AND LOSS

for the year ended 31st March 2016

{Amount in T
As at As ai
Particulars Nots 31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015
REVEMUE
Revenue from cperations : 24T | Zr.521 486 321,002 06
Less | Excige duty 06,332 768 | 183,188,718 69,900,757 | 251.04%2,335
Diher moome 218 32,731,338 19,118,045
Total revenue 215,920,053 270,211,380
EXPENSES
Cosl of malarials consurmid 218 44,388,418 108,347 562
Purchase of slock in lrada 2,20 1,122,578 -
Changes in imentores of Bnshed goods & siock in ade 2 (12,886,357) 208,581
Employes banafils axpanss 222 A4, 011 428 37 BEY BTT
Finance costs 2.23 42,784,014 8.210,115
Deprectation 219 18,006,175 11,080,816
Cithar expenses 2.24 £2,074 986 79,171,400
Total expenses 100,482,240 245,509,501
Profiti{Loss) before exceplional ilems 25,437 814 24,301, TED
Agdd | (Less) : Exceplional ibems . 4
ProfitiLoss) befors Tax (PET) 25,437 814 24 301, TED
Tax sxpaness :
{a) Current tax 2,400 BT 5543488
(b) Tax adjusiments for earlier yeers 1,114,781
¢} Dafarmd Lax (1.205,326)] 8,195,551 (5,617 006} 1,040,463
Profit/ (loss) for the pariod after Tax (PAT) 17,242,263 23,261,326
Eamings por share: (Refere nobe no,2.56) 1,60 218
Significant accounting polices and 1
Modes to and forming pars of Financial Sislemants 2

This is the Siatement of Profit & Loss refarmed to In our report of even date

For 5. M. DAGA & CO.

Chartered Accountants
Firm registration Mo. 303118E

Deapak Kumar Daga
Pariner
Mambarship No. 055205

Flace : Kolkala,
Date ; 30ih day of May, 2016

For and on behalf of the Board

Milotpal Deb Ravi Prakash Plncha
Managing Dérector Dérector
Prem Chand Khator Sunil Kumar Varma
Chief Financial Officar Company Secratary
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CASH FLOW

statement for the year ended
31st March 2016

{Amount in T)

BL For the year ended For the year ended
il | 1) EERee 315t March, 2016 315t March, 2015
A, |Cash flow from operating activities :

Mat proft before lax as per Statement of Prodit & Loes 25437 814 24,304,700

Acfustments for |
Dwapreciation 18,086,175 11,086,618
Intenast padd 41,278,408 T.874, 0045
Sundry balances writien off |[Eabilties writien back) (388, 358) 1,308,029
Doubtfull Dobl Recowerad = (2,813,535}
Bad Dubls 1,447,373 446,255
Provigion for rentad incomse A2-19 - 7,021,645
Loss on Dmage Inpuls and Rep of Finished Goots ~ 1,080,280
(Prafil} / Loss an sala of lxed assats 154,529 (B,7BE,473)
Intefeal recehed (28,067, 733} (6.774,854)
Davidend received {1,260,000) {1,260,000)
Forelgn Exchage (gan] ! loss on trade recalvabis {154,348 (1,270,415}
Provigion of Employeas’ ratirament & curmend benafits 10,668,178 40,670,221 2,430,868 12,564,133

|Cparating profit before working capital changes 66,308,035 36,865 873

{Incraase) | Decreass in invantories (T, 103,117} {1.5986,234)
{increase) / Decroass n {rede and other mosvables 3 65T G40 {2006 443 T51)
Incraase | (Decrease) i irede payables [48, 020 BET} [23,474,461) [27 592,072} [ {180,837,013)
Cash ganerabed fom oparations 42,833,674 (143,871,080}
Lizss: Direc] laves (paid) [ refunds including inleresl (net) (3,010.451) {8.456,608)
|Nat cash generatedijused) from operating activities 30,823,123 {152,428 6E5)
B. |Cash flow from investing acthvities :
Sale [ (Purchass) of fixed Assals (31,228,649} {58,003, 705)
(Deposil) ! Relund in Fixed Daposila g 1,008,322
Devidend recessed 1,260, D0 1,280,000
Inerael recehved 28,671,654 6,774,854
Nt cash from invesiing aciivibes [1,206,795) (50,956,529)
L. |Cash flow from financing activities :
Proceeds | {repayment) of long lerm borowings 94,776,155 (33,144 890)
Proceads | {rapayment) of shorl lerm borowings (58,817,063} 252 068,12
Indereal paid (41,106,817} {8,011,356)

[Net cash genaralediused) in inancing activilies {45,148 625) 11,811 866
Mot Increase![decresss) in cash and cash aquivalents [A+B+) (6622 297 8,428,748
Cash and cash equivelants -Dipening balance 8411872 83,234

[Cash and cash equivalents -Closing balance {2,788, 675) 8,411,872

|CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS COMPRISE:

Balancas with bank 26X 3TH 88T 448
Cash on hand | 167,399 540,500
2,TB9 ETE 8,411,972

This & the Cash Flow Statament refarred o in our report of evan daie

For 5. M. DAGA & CO,
Chartesed Aocountants
Firm registration Mo, 303115E

Doepak Kumar Daga
Parner

Memberehip No. 053205

Place : Kolkala,
Cate : 30th day of May, 2016

For and on bahalf of the Board

Hilotpal Dab

Managing Direclor

Prem Chand Khatar

Chief Financlal Officar

Ravi Prakash Plncha
Deraclor

Sunil Kumar Varma
Company Secratary
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NOTE 1-STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1) PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION
The Consohdated Financial Statements include the financial statements of ntc industries limited, the
parent company, and its subsidiaries (Refer Note No. 1{l)A) (collectively referred to as "Group) on the
following basis:

A

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Accounting
Standard - 21 on "Consolidated Financial Statements”, notified by the Central Government as
Companies (Accounting Standards), Rules 2006, in exercise of powers conferred ufs 129 of
Companies Act, 2013.

The financial statement of the parent company and its subsidiaries as on 31st March, 2016 are
combined on a line by line basis by adding together the book values of like items of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses after adjustments [ elimination of inter-company transactions,
balances including unrealized profit etc.

The surplus/deficit of cost of investmenl in the subsidiary over the proportionate share in equity
of subsidiary as at the date of investment is recognised as goodwill/ capital resaerve.

Capital Reserve (net of goodwill) arising out of cansalidation is stated at cost.

Minarity interest in the net assals of consolidated subsidiaries consists of:

. The amount of equity attributable to minorities at the date on which the control in a
subsidiaryis transferrad; and

Il Minorities share of movement in equity since the date the parent-subsidiary relationship
came into existence.

The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
tranzactions and other events in similar circumstances and are presented in the same mannear
as the parent company's slandalone financial statements.

The financial statements of the entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to the
same reporting date as that of the parent company |.e. 31st March, 2016.

I} BASIS OF PRESENTATION

A

The subsidiaries (which along with ntc industries limited, the parent company, constitute the
Group) considerad in preparation of these consolidated financial statemeants are:

Percentage of
Sl N Country of ownership
No. Incorporation interest as at
31.03.16
1 NTCIL Real Estate Private Limited India 100.00
2 NTCIL Infrastructure Private Limited India 100.00
3 NTCIL Siliguri Estate Private Limited India 100.00
4 NTCIL Realty Private Limited India 100.00

*Entire holding of the company was purchased on 27th August 2014.
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A Notes to these Consolidated Financial Statements are intended to serve as a means of
informative disclosure and guide to befter understanding of the consolidated position of the
Group. Recognising, this purpose, only such notes from the individual financial statements are
disclosed which fairly present the required disclosures.

B. The subsidiaries of the parent Company are those entities in which the parent company directly
or indirectly owns more than one half of the voting power or otherwise has powar to exercise
control over the composition of the Board of Directors/ Governing Body of such entities.

C. The financial statements of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the control is
transferred to the Parant Company.

lll) OTHERSIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These are set out under “Significant Accounting Policies” as given in the notes fo the accounts in the

stand alone financial statements of parent company and its subsidiaries.

A. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements are prepared under historical cost convention on accrual basis as a
going concern and in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP),
the Companies Act, 2013 and in compliance with Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules,
2006, (as amended) as notified u/s 129 of Companies Act, 2013 except those with significant
uncertainty. Accounting policies not stated explicitly otherwise are consistent with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles.

As required by Schedule lll, the Company has classified assets and liabilities into current and
non-current based on the operating cycle. An operating cycle is the time between the acquisition
of assets for processing and their realization in cash or cash equivalents. The operating cycle
has been considered as 12 months.

B. USEOFESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affects the balances of assets and liabilities and
disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date and amounts ofincome
and expenses during the year. Examples of such estimates include contract costs expected to
be incurred to complete construction contracts, provision for doubtful debts, income taxes and
future obligations under employea retirement benefit plans. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. The seffects of adjustment arising from revisions made to the estimates are included in
the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which such revisions are materialised.

C. REVENUE RECOGNITION

a) Revenue from sale of goods is recognised on transfer of all significant risks and rewards of
ownership to the buyer. Sales represent invoice value of finished goods sold inclusive of
excise duty and VAT/CST but exclude sales refurns, claims, rate difference etc.

b) Revenue from services are recognised on rendering of services to customers except
otherwise stated.

c) Rental income (exclusive of Service Tax) from assets given on operafing lease is
recognised using straight line method. Contingent rent is recognised as income to reflect
systematic allocation of eamings over the lease period. This policy is not applicable for
variable rental income based on turnover of the tenant.

Otherincome:

d) Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the rate applicable.

e) Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive is established.
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FIXED ASSETS

i) Tangible assets, including those given on operating lease, are stated at cost of
acquisition inclusive of freight incurred, duties and taxes (net of CENVATAAT) and
incidental expenses less accumulated depraciation.

iy Capital work in progress, cost incurmed on construction of fixed assets consists of all
directly attributable expenditlure.

i) Software is capitalised, where it is expected to provide future enduring economic
banefits.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

Depreciation s provided on depreciable value (cost minus residual value) using straight line
method in the manner that the assets is depreciated over the useful life stated in “Schedule - I of
Companiesact, 2013.

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

An assel is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of the same exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment is charged to statement of profit and loss in the year in which an asset is
identified as impaired. The impairment losses recognised in prior accounting period are reversed
if there has been a change in the estimate of the recoverable amount.

INVESTMENTS

Investments are bifurcated into noncurrent and current on the basis of intention of holding.
Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year from the
date of balance shaet are classified as current investments. All other investmeants ara classified
as noncurrent. Current investments are carried at lower of cost or fair market value, determined
on an individual investment basis. Moncurrent investments are carried at cost. Provision for
diminution in the value of noncurrent investments is made, only if such a diminution is other than

temporary.

INVENTORIES

a) Raw materials: At lower of weighted average cost or net realisable value.
b} Work in progress: At lower of cost or net realisable value.

c) Finished goods and Stock in trade: Al lower of cost or nel realisable value.

d) Stores and spares, packing: At lower of weighted average cost or net realisable value.

CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments without significant risk and with original maturitias of three months or
less as perthe AS - 3"CASH FLOW STATEMENT".

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing at
the date of the transactions or that approximates the actual rate at the date of transactions.
Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the year are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss for the year.

EXCISEDUTY
Excise duty has bean accounted for at the time of manufacture of goods, accordingly excise duty
on only marketable finished goods lying as stock in factory has been considered for valuation.
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L.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

a)

Short term employee benefits: All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve
months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits. Benefits
such as salaries, wages and short term compensated absences, the expected cost of
ex-gratia, etc are recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related
service.

b) Post-employment benefits:

i) Defined Contribution Plan: Employee benefits in the form of Provident fund,
employees state insurance etc. are considered as defined contribution plan and
the contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the year when
the contributions to the respective funds are due.

iii) Defined Benefit Plan: Employee benefits in the form of gratuity and leave
encashment are considered as defined benefit plan and are provided for on the
basis of an independent actuarial valuation, using the projected unit credit
method, as at the balance sheet date as per requirements of Accounting
Standard- 15 (Revised 2005) on “Employee Benefits”.

c) Actuarial gains/losses, if any, are immediately recognised in the statement of profit and
loss.

TAXATION

a) Current Tax: Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of
taxable income for the year in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act,

1961. Minimum Alternative Tax credit available under section 115JB of the Income Tax

Act, 1961 are accounted inthe year in which the benefits are claimed.

b) Deferred Tax: Deferred tax is recognised subject to consideration of prudence on the

basis of timing differences being the difference between taxable income and accounting
income that originate in one period and is capable of reversal in ona or more subsequeant
periods using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted as
at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax asset is recognised and carried forward only to
the extentthere is reasonable certainty that the asset will be realised in future.

PROVISIONS/CONTINGENCIES

The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of past
events and it is probable that there will be outflow of resources and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made of the amount of the obligation. When there is a possible
obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of
resources is remote, no provision ordisclosure is made.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current
bestestimats. Ifitis no longer probable that the outflow of resources would be required to
seftle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

CONTINGENTLIABILITY
Liabilities which are contingent in naturs ars not provided for in the accounts and the same are
separately disclosed by way of notes to account.
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P. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Earnings per Share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity sharas outstanding during the
period. For the purpose of calculating diluted eamnings per share, the net profit or loss for the
period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Q. PRIOR PERIODADJUSTMENTS
Adjustment of identifiable items of income and expenditure pertaining to prior period are
accounted for as prior period adjustments.
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SCH

EDULE

Particulars

st March 2018

F1st March 2015

Mobtes 1o Financial Stetements contd.. ..

{Amouni in Rs..)

Naota 2- Amounts i the Tnencial statemnenls ane presented in Rupess and rounded off bo e neanest decimals heneoll
Pravious yaar figures have bean regrouped | reclassified, wharever necessary to conform {o the curment year presantation.

MNote 2.1- Share capital
a, Authorised share gapital :

16,500,000 (Previows year 18,500,000) Equity Shares of Re. 105 each 165,000,000 165,000,000
3,500,000 [Previous e 3,500,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 100 each 35,000,000 35,000,000
Toial 200,000,000 200,000,000
b. Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital :
10,750,000 (Proviows year 10,760,000) Equity Shanes aach hully pasd 107,500,000 107 500,000
Total 107,500,000 07,500,000
&, Reconcillation of number of equity shares cutstanding :
As al the beginning of the year 10,750,000 10, 75D, 0
As ai the and of the yaar 10,750,000 10,750,000

d. Righls, preferences & restrictions to shares & restrictions on distribution of dividend and repayment of capital

The Company has Eswed only cisss of equity shares. Eesch shasshodder |s sligible for one wote per share. Dividend proposed (i any)
by the Board of Denectors, (& subdect to the approval of shamreholders, except in ceae of interim dividend, In the event of Liguedailon, the
shareholders of Ordinary Shares are eligible 1o recene [he remaning assels of the Company afler distribulion of all the preferential

armounls, in prsgodion 1o thair sharahalding

. Sharehalders holding more than 5% shares: % Holding % Holding

Shares held (No) | Shares haid (No.)

1. Vinod Dugar 19.24% 19.24%
2 (68,023 2,068, 03

2. Shestal Dugar 17.99% 17.899%
1,533 424 1,833,424

3. ¥MS Finance Privale Limied B.56% 6.66%
{Formery Pyramid Sales Private Limibed) 716,122 16122

4, Khatod Investments & Finance Company Limited 8.5T% 8.57%
21,225 821,225

6. Sunder Lal Dugar 5.7T% 5.77%
620,700 §20,700

1. Share Resarved for lesue:-

Mo Equity Shares have been reserved for issue under oplion & conbracis’commitments for sale of shares! disinvesiment as al

Balancn Shaat dale
MNote 2.2- Resenoes and surplus
8. Capital resane
As per [as| Financial Slatements 15,250,000 15,250,000
b. Capital mdemption reserve
Ag per last Financlal Statemanta 26,440,000 26,440,000
. Surplus, 1.e., balance of statement of profit and loss
Ag per last Financial Statements 180,146, 549 156,835 323
Add : Profil foe e year 17,242 263 23 261 326
Surplus - As at the and of the year 187 438,812 180,106,644
Total 238,128,912 221,886,649
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Particulars 3st March 2018 315t March 2015
Mofes to Financial Statements contd, . . (Aot in ¥ )
Mote 2.3- Long - term bomrowings
Erom Banks [Secured)
Term Loan from Kotak Mahindra Bank 81,627,759 -
MNature of Security
Secured by way assignments of Lease Renlals and corporale and personal guaranise
ol holdng comgany and promobens raspectively
Paymeamnt Detaills:
[The Loans are Repayable in 72 Monthiy intsiallmants of Rs. 18.91 lacs (ncheding
interest) starting from 25.11.2015 and last faling dws on 25, 10.3021
Ramarks
Tha applicabée rale of interest is Base Rale plus 2.60%
From other parfies {Unsecured)
From cther parties (Unsecured) (refer note noc2.33) 20,000,000 20,000,000
Total 101,627 759 20,000,000
Note 2.4- Long - term provisions
Provision for Employes Benefils 30,681,134 22 881,316
Total 30,581,134 22,881,316
Mote 1.5- Short - larm borrowings
Working capital logn from bank (Secwied, repayable an demand) 27,248,800 46,049,553
For Ganeral Buesness Pupose. Secured by corporale gusmantes of gmoup companies & by
personal guaranies of promoier. The applcables Inlenest rale is basa rabe plus 3%
Genral Business purpose Loan from NBFC (Unsecured, repayable on demand) . 232 887 205
Erom other parties {Unsgcured] 152,868,185
Total 180,118,785 ZTH 936,758
Mole 2.6- Trade Payables
To Mecro, Smafl & Medium Enfarprisas - -
To others 16,816,583 20,849,415
[The Company s In communicatan with #e suppliers to sscersn the applicability of “The
Micro, Small and Medium Enfepdses Developerent Act, 20087, As al the dale of thes
balanca sheet the company hes not recaivad any communications from any of its
suppSers reganding the appicabity of the Act to therm, Ths has been reled upon by the
auditors. |
Total 18,816 20 15
Mote .7- Other current llabilities
Casrend maturities of long term dekd 13,148,356
Intoras! accneed but nol dus an Long Tarm Bormowings 172,591
Excise duty payable (BOR) (refer note 2.32) 21,548,180 21,548,160
Slalutory Eatdlies 1,470,342 7,052,045
Advanca from Licenses 1.130,634
Advance from olher than relaled party 8,628,355 78,227,208
Secunty Deposit Recaived-Godown 23,578,230
Other payabies 33,737,850 25,818,498
Advanca {aken from subsidiary -
Unclaimed dividend (Fiefer Mote 2.38) 131,943 430,674
Total _1m,m,m 134,079,586
Mote 3.8- Shori-larm provisions
Lpeely 4= 13,054 815 5523488
Provision for Employes Benefits 3,702 045 4,374,507
Total 18.7 8,917,808

AT indusinies Imbed

ANNLAL REPORT _ 20ME-10 PAGE #94



B OLEE | wEELLL 9ER'ETZRTS [ STO'WLEEL | oOL'EEN'ED I
- PEE L - - FEE L AaULEEN
CTL'E0E'e - geg'2ze'eg CrL e OcE'ZZe'en Td OI0-dIM

006 wE0" 1 . DOG"FED | . PSR (e,
e DO0'BLE'E Bl LG dpuedy Y

SHOZED'RE | SMOTEDLE SLOE D kD
L uo By oL pesiaded PP e gy ~Uiyuoa [Eypden Jo ey
[OEBEERLE | EFEOEEEEE | 690Te9'S0L | E1ELGERE oLEEE0LE [ S0LESSEER [ oiFeRorOr [ esefouzies [ ooetioe’ool [ opoEEEEGE A, ENOWMRIH
\WEBEE BBZ | ZZP OVO'SPE | SOOBLOECH | BEZOLF 5Lh'9608h | §90 ZBO50L | LZF B0 BOF | BECESY SELER0S | WL BZDPOF {E10L
FRER LG AN GEL GG e LB 18T VEE'OEE | D00°04 LEE'9RE | EETATTETY
FLE'EDL 110801 BELLFE L 2LV P 299796171 BLELFE'L AN Le'one'L iAoy
DEZ'2L5 GEC'ZIE BUPEEG Lga'ofL 0L EEr JBE'0O6 oodaE LBE'BER suswdinbs Ay
=l LE4'6E BOZ 20T . q50'F P0G LGE BOE' LOE . . BoE' LoE Ty, i DL
FRFOEG'OF | DEROGSEEE | LE'RSE'LL | REZ'OLL LY EIEE ELLBLLEE | £0O'REETDLL | BEE'ES Gl LG5 LEL'DLER0L AsUmEel] B UEY
GOS'REFERL |GIR'9LELET | ELB'FELLL LLARAL'EL | 9EE e 0T L GE' ST GEFBLE LS | LB WLETEL Biupying Je0
b LRE L LG LEEE L FEFOLE'LE 0926495 PEE VBRI | GER'EDE'BE GES'Z0E'GE Buspang Aimoey
LEF'GOLES LEV'LLL'DG = = = - LEFLLL'DD OO°Zi LEF'SOL'ED puE
ad . pouad : pojad poped :
ey | Twesy | evdn | owBuunp |pousqesog SLEEE | SRR | sigBuunp | ewpBupnp | SIXEED | ame
1 uoganpag suopanpag r!EﬁEﬁ.__
EECTERETT u HoOlE EE0ID

{ & L Aoty BIBEEE PaN|d 5T 810N

EJUBWAEIEE [BRUBU|Y Jo Wed Bujuwgy pue o) 510N

_ 218 PAGE #95

ANNLAL REPORT

AT indusinies Imbed



Particulars 31ist March 2018 31st March 2015
Moles ko Financial Slalements condd. ... fAmount inF )
Hota 2,10- Non-Currant Investments
Irvvestrment in Equety Instrements, Trade Investments (&t cost, fully paid)
Quoted
ROE Reslty & Infrestruciure Lid. 6,014,807 6.014,887
{12,60,000 shares of Rs 10 each)
Total 6,014,807 6,014,887
Apgregate Book Value of Quoted Investmant 6,014,907 6,014,597
Aggregate Market Value of Quoted Investment 35,873,000 34,308,000
Mole 2.11- Deferred Tax Liabilities | (Assets) (net)
8. Defared iax asasts
= Provigion for Employos Benefits 12,792 402 11,418,280
Sub Total - Deferred tax Assets 12,792 402 11,418,260
u li@hili
- Depraciation allowanca on fixed assats 5,075,554 4,506,788
Suly Total - Deferred tax liabilites 5,075,554 4,806,768
Total {a-b) 7,716,848 6,511,522
MNois 2.12- Long - terrm loans and advances
[Lnsacurad, congadensd good)
Diepoait with Excise Authosity 11,416,000 11,416,000
Refund receivabie fom Excse Authornity (BOR] [refer nole no, 2,32} 40,493 280 40,483 280
Tolal 51,000,280 51,008,280
Mota 2.13- Inventories
[As takan, vakmd & cortified by the Managemeant)
{far valuation redar note no, 1(F )}
Raw matarialks 16,288,239 20,798,078
Finizhed goods 26,576,301 13,870,259
Slock-in-trada 289,316 1,670,365
Stores and spares 3,241,567 2,053,603
Total wﬂl ﬁﬂl&
Mote 2.14- Trade recelvables
(Unsecured, considered qood)
Cuisianding for more than six months 4 533 360 6827 4T1
Cthara B,247 738 29,766,118
Sub Total 13,481,009 38,693,588
(Unsecured, conssdened doubtfull}
Cuisianding for more than six monihs B20,388
Less:Provision for bad and doubifull debt - [A20,386)
Sub Total - -
Total 13,481,089 36,693,589
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Particulars 31ist March 2018 31st March 2015
Moles fo Financid Statements condd. .. [Amount i ¥ )
Mote 2.15- Cash and bank balances
LCash and cash eguivalonts -
- Balancas with bank 2,622 278 8,671,446
= Cash on hand (As certifed by the managenmeni) 167,389 540, 536
Sub Total 2,784,675 89.411,6872
Other bank balances ;
- Unpaid Dividend {Refer Mole 2.38) 131,843 285,533
- Draft in Hand (Rafar Mota 2 38) 151,149
- Fixind Dposits (For lian agamst guaranbses and latler of crodil) 3,381,735 3,351,735
Sub Total 3,523,678 3,622,409
Total Iﬂam 13,234 380
Note 2.16- Short-lerm loans and advances
[Unsecurad, considerad good)
Loan to Body Corporate (other than related) 208,858, 785 230,600,456
Advance o directors & officers of The company 655,868 42,710
Balanca with revenue authorites 42 508 B25,184
Advance Incoma Tax & TDS 20,035,203 18,835,592
Cithar advances 54,471,670 51.068,258
Intereal accrued but not due 245 YD -
Deposils 7,181,220 -
Prepald Expanses 2831 728 -
Total 233 861 301,471,198
Note 2.17- Revenue from operations
Sl of Goods
- Sale of manufaciured goods :
= Downestic 125,343,177 105,820,425
- Export 51,458,905 154855178
- Bale of stock In irade 1,378,167
Bub Total (a) 178,176,278 280,784 603
Crther operating incomes
= Rantal Incorme BB, 556,470 a0,064, 232
- Bale of Manufacturing Wasia 138,180 30,000
= Inoame from Mansgement Consuflancy 1,500,000 123,268
- Sale of Export Benefit Licanss 3,048,547 -
Sub Tolal (b} 101,345 207 60,217 480
Total {a+b) Iﬂ,ﬂhﬂl 321,#!!,“;‘
MNote 2 18- Other income
Profit / (Loss) on sale of fiwed asset {154,529){ B.TEE 479
Intereat income 28,967,733 6,774 854
Diwidand (nan curmeni, rade imnaestmants) 1,260,000 1,260,000
Recovary of bad & doubsfull debt £ 2613,335
Sundry balances | abilities wiitten back (net) 398,634
Excisa refund 1,588,508 -
Foreign currency uciualion gan 154,348 1,270,415
Cithar recaipis 516,540 431,962
Total 32,731,336 19,119,045

AT indusinies Imbed
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Particulars st March 2016 315t March 2015
Motas to Financial Statements contd... (Amount in )
MNole 2,19 (a}- Cost of Material Consumad during the year
Opaning Stock of Raw Material 22,3068 443 22,022,843
Add: Purchasa of Raw Matarial 39,142 322 108,801,873
Less: Damage of Raw Makerial 1,734,100 1,208 681
Less: Closing Stock of Rew Maserial 15,358,243 | 22,368,443
Consumption 44,108 422 { 108,347 682

Mole 2,18 (b)- Cost of materials consumed

% consumption |

% consumption

valus-consumption | value-consumption
Few Tot 38 63% 4.61%
17,147,088 ar 487 061
Filter Rod 20.07% 24.55%
8,508,134 26,604,116
Blank 14.08% 12.88%
6847611 13,846,800
Crhars 25,325 27.596%
11,684,713 30,206,715
Total 100.00% 100.00%
44,388 428 108,347,602
Hole 2,19 [c) Particulars of materials consumed | % and valus)
2.88% 1.93%
Imiporied = s
1,182,074 2,086,140
Indigencus 97.34% | BE.0T%
43,306,352 106,261,552
Total 100.00% 100.00%
44,388 426 108,347 692
Hole 2.20- Purchase of stock In trade
Match Boxes{100%) 1,122 578 -
Total 1,122,578 -
Hole 2.21- Change in Inventories of finished goods and stock - in - Irada
COpaning Stock of
= Finished goods 13,970,260 14,178,850
- Stock - in - trade - -
Talal {a) 13,970,258 14,178,850
Clasing Siock of
- Finished goods 26,578,301 13,670,258
= Shock - in - irade 289,315 -
Total (b) 206,865,616 13,800,258

(Increase) / Decreases in inventories (a-b)

Hote 3.22- Employes benefils expense

{12 ag |

Salaries , wages, bonus, allowances, elc 28,784,182 31,013,112
Caontribution to provident and other fund 2,454,748 2428 345
Staff wetlare expenses 1,836,042 1,782 514
Provision for Gratuity 8,506,396 2,656,602 _
Total 44,011,428 37,881,977
Mote 2.23- Finance costs
Intarast paid 41278408 7874009
Finance Charges 1,504,608 1,336,106
Total 42,784,014 8,210,115

AT indusinies Imbed
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Particulars 31ist March 2018 31st March 2015
Moles o Financial Statements conld.... [lrrvaiirnd i 3 )
Hote 2.24 (a)- Dther axpenses
a. Manufacturing expsnses :
Stores and spanas congurmied 3,060,264 4 T45 800
Power and fusd conaumed T.549,180 14,726,776
Machss repairs 716,614 EBE ATV
Irward fredght, coole, cartage and other expensas 1,470,341 3,115 802
Other manufacturing expenses 596,457 1,046,212
Total (a) 13,381,765 21,528,747
i [[+13]
Fland - 61,314
Rates and Taxas 78,373 Sd, 240
Bullding Repairs 5,345,TBB 3,010,351
Oilher Masnlenance 201,562 184,988
Viehicle maintenance expenses 587418 B3, 975
Insurance Premasm 413,028 610,872
Sundry balances [ Eabiilies written off (et} 10,278 1,508 029
Travaling and conveyance 431.BBT LE2 4T
Postage, egraph and lelephones 397,591 BET 405
Prinling and stalionary 325,025 75,233
Filing Fees E,455
Penalty & Imarest 294 140
Legal & Professional Charges 3,965,736 8,914 417
Biad Debi 1,441,373 444, 259
Eleciricity charges T20,403 Ba1,021
Land revenue and municipal axes (net) 999,138 ThE, 178
Loss on Damage Inputs and Rep of FG - 1,080,289
Miscollannous Bxpanses 1,683,664 1,6BE 592
Audiore' remunaration :
= Myl fee 88,000 BB,000
- Tax audii fes 25,000 25,000
Total (b} 17,014, 608 21,TER, 739
c.Selling and distribution expenses ;
Advertlssmeant and publiclty expenses 2,333,772 ¥ 245 822
Distribution Expenses & Sales Promofion Expenses 4,171,602 8,127,933
Sales 8% 3,247,700 5,688,838
Qubward fresghl and forwarding charges 4,580,877 12,747,713
Brokerage, comméssion and discounis 7,844,348 1,881,608
Total (c) 22,578 408 35,851,914
Tolal (a+be) 52,874,080 78,171,400
Note 2.24{b) Particulars of stores and spares consumed { % and valus) % consumption/ | % consumption /
value-consumption | valus-consumption
0.00% B.34%
e - 301,072
Indigenous 100.00%) B3 66%
3,050,264 4444, 8048
Total 1m.m_| 100.00%
3,050,264 4,745 BBO

AT indusinies Imbed
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2.24.(c)In the opinion of the Board the current assels, loans and advances are nol less than the stated value if
realised in ordinary course of business. The provisions for all known liabilities are adequate. There are
no contingent liabilities except stated, as informed by the management.

2.25. The Business of the company falls under a single segment i.e. Manufacturing of Cigarette and Smoking
Mixture. In view of the general classification notified by Central Governmenl in exercise of powers
conferred u/s 129 of Companies Act, 2013 for companies operating in single segment, the disclosure
requiremant as per Accounting Standard - 17 on "Segment Reporting” are not applicable to the
Company. The Company's business is mainly concentraled in similar geographical, political and
economical conditions; hence disclosure for geographical segment is also not required.

2.26. Earmings Per Share in accordance with AS-20:-

E.nmingl per share is computed as under: 201516

Profit after tax available for equity shareholders (A) @) 17,242, 263/-
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding (B) 10,750,000/-
Face value per equity share £4] 104~
Eamings per share- Basic & Diluted (AB) F) 1.60/-

2.27. Employee Defined Benefits:-

a) Defined Contribution Plans: The Company has recognised an expensa of Rs. 24,28,087/-

(Previous Year Rs. 24,29 349/-) towards the defined contribution plans.

b) Defined Benefit Plans: As per actuarial valuation as on March 31, 2016 and recognised in the
financial staternents in respect of employees benefit schemes:
(¥ in Laca)

PARTICULARS e . e
) Gratuity [ Leave | Gratuity | Leave

| _| Components of employer expense % L
1 | Current service cost 11.77 2.53 8.31 0.18
2 | Inlerest cost 2431 0.37 2254 0.55
3 | Expected relurn on plan assels = = = -
4 | Curtallment cost/ {credit) - - - -
5 | Settlemant cost/ (cradit) = - = =
6 | Pasl service cost - - - -
7 | Acluarial losses! (gains) 62.08 1.55 15.29) (5.68)

Total employer expense nised in the

8 Emmm”:ﬂ pmnf‘; ok 98.18 445| 2657 (5.95)

Graluity expense is recognised in "Gratuity” and "Leave Encashrment” in “Salary, Wages and Bonus® undes Note - 2.21.

Net Asset/ {Liability) recognised in balance sheet

1 | Presant value of defined banefit obligation 336.21 B.62 | 26999 2.57
2 | Fair value of plan assats - - - -
3 | Funded status [Surplus/ (Deficit}] (336.21) (6.62) | (260.099) (2,57)
4 | Unrecognised past service costs - : - -
6 | Net Assal/ (Liabllity) recognised in balance sheal (336.21) {(6.62) | (269.99) (2.57)

AT indusinies Imbed
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% in Lacs)

PARTICULARS [ s _ sty
Gratuity | Leave | Gratuity | Leave
lll_| Change in Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) 1
1 | Present value of DBO al the beginning of period 269.99 2.57 293.62 11.29
2 | Currenl service cosl 11,77 253 8.31 0.18
3 | Interesi cosi 24 31 037 22 54 0.55
4 | Curtaiiment cost / (credit) - = - -
5 | Settlement cost [ (credit) . - - -
& | Plan amendmanis - - = =
7 | Acquisitions - - - -
8 | Actuarial logses [ (Gains) 62.09 _1.55 15.29) (6.68)
9 | Benefil payments [31.95) (0.39) {50.20) {2.78) |
10 | Present value of DBO al the end of pariod 336.21 G.62 269.99 257
IV | Change in fair value of assets
1 | Plan assets at the beginning of period - = - -
2 | Acquisition ad|ustment - - - -
3 | Expected return on plan assels - - = =
4 | Actual Company contributions 31.85 {0.39) 50.20 2.78
& | Actuarial Gain / [Loss) - = - =
6 | Benefil payments (31.85) {0.39) {50.20) (2.78)
T | Plan assets at the end of period - - - -
W | Actuarial Assumption
1 | Discount rate B.00% B.00% B.00% 8.00%
2 | return on assets _N.A _NA _NA WA
3 | Salary escalations: - Tobacco 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
Indian IndEan
Assured | Assured LIC
Lives Lives (2006- LIC
4 | Mortality Maortality | Mortality 08) (2006-08)
(2006~ (2006~ Ulimale Ultimate
08) 08)
Uitimate | Ulimate
5 The Estimaies of fulure salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation takes account of infiation,
seniority, promation and clher relevant faclors such as supply and demand in employment markel.
& Discount rate is based upon the market vields available on Govermmeent Bonds at the accounting
date with a term that matches with that of liabilllles

2.29. Related party disclosures:-
In terms of AS-18 on “Related Party Disclosures”, related party disclosures are as under:
{1y Other related parties with whom the company had fransactions:-

(A) Key Management PFersonnel and their relatives:-

5l. No. | Name Designation /Relationship
1. Milotpal Deb | Managing Director

(B) Enterprises over which KMP/major shareholders! relatives have significant influence:-

5l. No. Name of Enterprise 5l. No. Name of Enterprise
1 NTCIL Eiliguri Estate Private Limited 2 NTCIL Realty Private Limitad
3 NTCIL Infrastructure Private Limited 4 NTCIL Real Esiate Private Limited
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{11} Disclosure of transactions with related parties and outstanding balances:-

(Amount in 7)

Particulars KMP and their relatives Subsidiaries
Electricity Income ol 52{},?5_2’
Remuneration Paid E&?ﬁgﬂﬁﬁj 1:5
Advance given against Gratuity 45‘31?5? 5
Advarce taken {_] 4.55-3.?i:]?l-
Advance taken repaid {_] 5-500.'[[]3?
Advance given 21 E.EF_U_*-;J E:i
Advance given against Salary adjusted TE?“_? I—:l
Investments in Equity Shares {] mnn,nn{"}i
Sale of Fixed Assets 1_] {230,15&,605_3;
Balances outstanding

Investment in Equity Shares l] HT]%DEIE%
Advance glven against Gratuity 45Drﬁ [—1
Advance given against Salary [:EEDU%LS:; !_—}
Advance taken {_] 4.553.?i?
Trade Receivable {_] 129,?1[;

Mote: -

(i) Previous year figuras have bean given in brackets.

(i} As the liability of gratuity and compensated absence are provided on actuarial basis for
the company as a whaola, the amount pertaining to the directors are not ascertainable and
therefore notincluded in the above

(i) Related party relaticnships are identified by the company on the basis of available
information.
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2.30.

2.3

232

2.33

Additional Information, as required under Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013, of
enterprises consolidated as Subsidiary / Associates | Joint Ventures:

MNet Assets Le. total assets
minus total liabilities SIS I POt S0 e
Mame of the entity
As % of Amount As % of Amount
consolidated (Zin lacs) consolidated (Zin lacs)
net assets profit or loss
Parent:
ntc industries limited 90.42% 3,134 .29 (28.84%) (49.73)
"Subsidiaries:
“indian:
MNTCIL Real Estate Private Limited (0.06%) (1.98) (10.74%) (18.52)
MNTCIL Infrastructure Private Limited 9.71% 336.59 139.62% 240,74
"NTCIL Realty Estate Private Limited | (0.02%) (0.70) (0.02%) (0.03)
NTCIL Siliguri Private Limited (0.02%) (0.70) (0.02%) (0.03)
Foreign

Minority Interests inall subsidiaries
Indian: - X - "
Foreign: - ? - H

Associates (Investments as per the equity method)
Indian: . . . =
Foreign: - - - =

Joint Venture
Indian: - . z a
Foraign: - - . 5

In terms of confirmation of sale of assets of New Tobacco Co. Ltd. (In Liguidation) in favour of the

Company vide order dated 19" April, 2006 of Calcutta High Court,. Conveyance deed of Siligurl Property
is yet to be executed for transfer of title in favour of the Company.

A sult has been filed against the company in the year 1899 for recovery of Rs.20,000,000/- along with
interest which is still pending before the Hon'ble High Court, Kolkata. The company disputes the claim of
the party and as the matter is sub-judice no provision for interest has been made.

In view of the amendment made in the Union Budget 2003 with retrospective effect, the Company is
liable to refund excise duty amounting to Rs. 48,238 160/- received/ receivable in terms of notification
no.32/99 dated 8" July, 1999 issued by the Central Government, on account of Badarpur unitin Assam
and interest thareon amounting to Rs 13,51,65,973 (PY Rs 12,56,93,128 /-) upto 31" March, 2016. The
Company had challenged the amendment in Hon'ble High Court at Guwahati and subsaquently the
matter was transferred to Hon'ble Supreme Court of India. The Hon'ble Supreme Court vide its order
dated 19" Septemnber, 2005 has confirmed such retrospective amendment made by the Ceantral
Government through its Budget MNotification. However, the company was of the view that the
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ameandment was nol applicable to it and a clarification / modification petition o that effect was filed and
admitted by the Hon'ble Supreme Court. On 31" October, 2007, the Cenfral Excise Department had
passed a fresh adjudication order confirming the demand and the company has appealed befora the
Appellate Trbunal which was brought to the notice of the Hon'ble Supreme Court. The Hon'ble Supreme
Court disposed off the petition on 25" March, 2008 with a direction that appeal shall be decided by
appellate authority on merits and in accordance with law. The appeal filed before the Tribunal was
disposed off without relief. The Company moved to Hon'ble High court at Guwahati but failed to get any
relief against the order dated 19.04.2012, the company has again filled the appeal before the Hon'ble
Supreme Court of India. The Hon'ble Supreme Court of India vide order dated 07.02.2014 set aside the
order of the Hon'ble High court at Guwahati and requested to deal with the questions of law set aside in
its previous order, In terms of this the hon'ble High Court at Guwahati vide its order dated 19.11.2014
remanded the matter to CESTAT at Kolkata for consideration of the matter in accordance of law. The
said appeal is still pending to be decided. The company is confident to get the full relief as the entire
beneafit was passed on to the consumer and as such the company does nol accept any further liability
and no provision is considered necessary based on the expert legal advice. Further to this the company
has accounted for during financial year 2000-01 a sum of Rs. 40,493, 280/- as excise duty refund
recaivable (Badarpur) and Rs.21,548,160/- towards excise duty payable (Badarpur) in terms of the
above mentioned notification.

234 The company has during the year under review has filed an appeal before the Calcutta High court
against the entry tax imposed by state government on the import of input from other states and
accordingly not paid the entry tax to the tune of Rs.2, 16,626 (P.Y. Rs. 24 757/-) till the date of financial
statements. But the same has been provided for in the financial statements.

2.35 Contingent Liability in previous year includes Assessed VAT of Ris 110.24 lakhs for the Financial Year
2011-12. Company has preferred appeal before the appellate authority against this order. This demand
of VAT is due to wrong treatment of the VAT deducted at source by the government contractea from the
transferee company at the time of demerger in 2010-11 and wrongly deposited in the name of the
company. The said appeal is decided in favour of Company.

2.38 Inthe preceding financial year a group of minority shareholders had filed a suit against the company in
the court of Learned Fourth Civil Judge (Junior Division) at Sealdah, West Bangal. Since the matter is
subjudice in the court, any disclosures given at this moment would be prejudicial to the interest of the
company and that of the stakeholders.

2.37. Contingentliabilities & Guarantea given : (¥in Lacs)
Particulars As at 31.03.16 As at31.03.15
a) Claims against the company nol acknowledged as debt 144.54 144.54
b) Disputed Liabilities relating to Central Excise Demand 9100.74 8,006.02
c) Disputed Liabilities relating to VAT, - 110.24
d) Disputed Liabilities relating to Entry Tax 217 0.25
e) Eﬂﬁhrgludgr;ﬁuaranm given to bank for loan taken (by 1 20,000.00
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2.38. Foreign exchange earnings and outgo:
a) Earnings in foreign exchange:

¥ in Lacs)
Description Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.16 31.03.15
F.0.B Valus of Export 474.02 1028.65
b} Outgo in foreign exchange: (% in Lacs)
Description Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.16 31.03.15
- Raw malerials 1.78 30,38
Total 1.78 30036

2.39 The figures of previous year have been reclassified and regrouped wherever considerad necessary.

Signatories to Mote Mo. 1 & 2 forms part of the financial statement.

For 3. M, DAGA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration Mo, 303119E

Daspak Kumar Daga

Partner
Memberghip Mo, 058205

Flaca : Kolkata.
Date : 306h day al May, 2016

For and on behall of the Board

Milotpal Dab Ravi Prakash Pincha
Managing Deeclor Dérgctor
Pram Chand Khator Bundl Kumar Varma
Chiel Financial Oficar Company Secratary
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